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S&P Group is passionate to deliver quality coconut food
products with its natural flavour and nutritional attributes in
a convenient form to the world whilst committed to achieve
superior returns and sharing the success with all involved.
We want to be the preferred global supplier of coconut
food products.

MELEHBREHRERRABK 2828  HES
EHMEEMERR  FB )RS Eﬁlil#& Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HRTHAZER - RAPTFRAEXTRNE2HRMER M
HIERE -



Four-Year Financial Summary

mEIERE

Corporate Information

NEEH

Corporate Structure

NEIRE

Chairman’s Statement

FERSE

Directors and Senior Management Profile
EERoREREBN
Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIB-HERERKRSE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR N

Corporate Governance Report
TEERMRE

Report of the Directors

EExEWmE

Independent Auditors’ Report

BB AR S

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

FmeBERkHEMEEKER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B R &

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREERX

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FRERERER

Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS ER R M AL

1

17

41

49

67

o1

97

o8

100

101

102

' B



S&P International Holding Limited

2 Annual Report 2017

Four-Year Financial Summary
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Results (Audited)
Revenue

Profit before taxation
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96,523,837 89,795,056 78,343,631 65,181,204
4,818,877 18,238,315 18,357,943 10,186,793
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Four-Year Financial Summary (continued)
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As at 31 December
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Assets and liabilities (Audited) ¥ & & & & (8RB #&)
Total assets BERE 133,468,975 73,995,833 78,713,244 67,268,450
Total liabilities BERE 17,770,245 20,608,877 31,986,660 27,064,386
Net assets BEFE 115,698,730 53,386,956 46,726,584 40,204,064
I

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the three
years ended 31 December 2016, 2015 and 2014 and of the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2016, 2015 and 2014
has been extracted from the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June
2017 with the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 11 July 2017.

No financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
have been published.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (‘Directors”) of S&P International
Holding Limited (“Company” or “S&P International”), | am delighted to
welcome you as a shareholder of S&P International. It is my pleasure to
present to you the inaugural annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, “S&P Group” or “Group”) for the financial year
ended 31 December 2017 (“FY2017”).

S&P International was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on 11 July 2017. The initial public offering (“IPO”)
involved the issuance of 270,000,000 offer shares of the Company which
comprised 27,000,000 new shares being offered to members of the public
in Hong Kong and the conditional placing of 243,000,000 new shares to
professional, institutional and other investors. The listing exercise raised
gross proceeds of approximately HK$129.6 million at HK$0.48 per share.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of food
products. The core products include coconut-derived products such as
coconut cream powder and low fat desiccated coconut, which we
manufacture at our Perak Plant in Malaysia. We also manufacture other
food products, such as coconut spread, non-dairy creamer and other
traditional South-east Asian food ingredients, such as rice dumplings (ketupat)
and toasted coconut paste (kerisik).

Traditionally, coconuts are mainly extracted for their milk as well as
desiccated coconut. These products form an important part of the people’s
staple diet in countries where coconuts are commonly found.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW AND BUSINESS
OUTLOOK

The coconut and related consumer products industry in the tropical region
of South East Asia has generally enjoyed a steady growth over the past few
years. Based on the industry report provided by an industry consultant, the
market value of the coconut and related products production industry in
Malaysia alone grew at a compounded annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of
13.6% from 2011 to 2015. In the forecast period from 2016 to 2020, CAGR
of the coconut and related products production industry in Malaysia is
estimated to be 13.9%. The growth was attributable to the increasing
popularity of coconut and related products in the global market as coconut
related products are increasingly recognized as functional food providing
essential nutrients with various other health benefits. Demand for coconut-
related products experienced strong growth in countries such as Jamaica,
Saudi-Arabia, UAE and U.S. Given this backdrop, we envisage that the
global coconut related products production industry will continue to register
a healthy double-digit growth in the foreseeable future.
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Responding to the increasing consumer preference for coconut related
products, governments of coconut producing countries in the tropics, such
as Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia, Philippines, Sri Lanka and India, are
providing various incentives to encourage growth of the coconut supply
and downstream processing activities. These developments augur well for
the continuing growth and expansion of the Group’s operations.

GROUP BUSINESS DIRECTION

S&P Group is one of the leading manufacturers of coconut cream powder
in the world. We are committed to continuously improving our product
quality and setting new standards for our coconut milk powder related
products. In this regard, the management team places significant emphasis
on research and development (‘R&D”) efforts as well as product innovation
in line with changing consumer trend and preferences. Our R&D team also
strives to provide recipe customization solutions for our customers to
support our business growth plans.

Capitalizing on the strong growth opportunities of the coconut products
industry, the Group is currently undertaking production capacity expansion
projects and widening its distribution channels. Presently, our products are
exported to more than 40 countries worldwide. We believe that our
overseas sales will continue to be our main source of revenue growth. In
this regard, we plan to expand our global market reach further to identified
markets with fast coconut products consumption growth and under-
represented countries.

In tandem with our continuing growth plans and to ensure sustainability
thereof, we recognize the importance of building depth and breadth of our
management capability on a continuing basis. In this connection, the
management team will devise and implement a comprehensive human
resource development and talent management program.

Whilst our business is expected to see growth in the foreseeable future, we
strive to do better for all our stakeholders. We encourage our management
team to improve productivity and efficiency of all our business processes
and continue to strengthen the Group’s competitiveness. These efforts will
ultimately benefit our shareholders via improvement in our operations and
performance.

In addition, we are committed to operating in a sustainable manner and
seeking to reduce the environmental impact by focusing on conservation of
energy as well as utilisation of applicable renewable resources. We aim to
explore innovative methods to recycle and reuse our by-products whilst
saving energy cost, including deployment of a biomass boiler (to replace
fossil fuels) and solar panels for energy.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group’s revenue for FY2017 was approximately RM96.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 7.5%, or RM6.7 million, when
compared with that for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
(“FY2016”) of approximately RM89.8 milion. Gross profit for FY2017
increased by approximately 3.0%, or RM0.9 million when compared with
that for FY2016 in tandem with the increase in revenue.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of approximately RMO0.4 million for FY2017, as compared to a
profit of approximately RM13.4 million in FY2016. The significant decline
was mainly due to the non-recurring listing expenses of approximately
RM13.2 million incurred in FY2017 and the net foreign exchange loss of
approximately RM1.4 million, mainly due to the appreciation of the
Malaysian Ringgit against the US Dollar in relation to the settlement and
retranslation of US Dollar-denominated trade receivables of the Group.

Further explanation of our Group’s financial performance of FY2017 is
provided in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’ section of this
annual report.

APPRECIATION

Our historical 2017 would not have been possible without the devotion and
faithful commitment of all our staff in S&P Group. On behalf of my fellow
Directors, | would like to extend my gratitude to our valued customers,
business associates and government bodies for their steadfast support. To
our shareholders, we thank you for your confidence in S&P International.
We shall commit ourselves to creating sustainable shareholder value and
solid financial performance. Last but not least, my heartfelt appreciation
also goes to my fellow Directors for their guidance, advice and insight in
steering the Group forward.

Mr. Tang Koon Fook
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Director+s and Senior Management Profile
EERSHREEER[N

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tang Koon Fook (“Mr. Tang”), aged 55, was appointed as our
Director on 10 November 2016 and became our Chairman and Executive
Director on 22 March 2017. He is also Chairman of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Remuneration Committee, and a
director of various subsidiaries of our Company. He is primarily responsible
for the overall management, strategic planning and the day-to-day business
operations and financial management of our Group since its establishment.

Mr. Tang has about 20 years of experience in the food industry. Mr. Tang
joined Carrier (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., an air-conditioning company, as a
credit assistant in January 1986 and last served as a credit officer in
January 1990, where he was responsible for credit control. From November
1991 to January 1995, he was the accountant and credit controller of Jasa
Kita Trading Sdn. Berhad (a subsidiary of Jasa Kita Berhad), an investment
holding company and was listed on the stock exchange of Kuala Lumpur
(stock code: 8648), where he was responsible for credit control and
account management. From June 1995 to December 1997, Mr. Tang was
the chief executive officer of Angkatan Hebat Sdn. Bhd., a fleet
management service provider in Malaysia, where he was responsible for the
overall management. From January 1998 to December 2007, Mr. Tang
worked in S&P Food Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd. (“S&P Food Industries”),
the business predecessor of our Group, as the general manager and
managing director where he was in charge of the food manufacturing
operations.

Mr. Tang received a master’s degree of business administration (banking
and finance) from the University of Hull, England in July 1991.

MANAGING DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Mr. Lee Sieng Poon (“Mr. Lee”), aged 58, was appointed as our Director
on 10 November 2016 and became our Managing Director and Executive
Director on 22 March 2017. He is also the Chairman of the Sanctions
Oversight Committee and a director of various subsidiaries of our Company.
He is primarily responsible for the overall management, sales and
marketing, research and development, day-to-day management of the
sales and marketing and maintenance of customer relationship of our
Group since its establishment.
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Mr. Lee has about 35 years of experience in the food industry. From
September 1984 to October 1987, Mr. Lee was the financial executive of
S&P Food Industries, where he was responsible for preparation of the
management account, planning, sourcing and liaising with the suppliers.
From October 1992 to January 2008, he was the executive director of S&P
Food Industries, where he was responsible for the sales and marketing and
factory operations.

Mr. Lee studied in Sandford Park High School, Ireland until 1978.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yap Boon Teong (“Mr. Yap”), aged 51, was appointed as our
Executive Director on 22 March 2017. Mr. Yap is a director of S&P
Industries Sdn. Bhd. (“S&P Industries”) and also the general manager of
the plant and technical division of Stancodex Sdn. Bhd., both being the
Company’s key operating subsidiaries. He is primarily responsible for the
implementation of new projects and provides technical support to factory
operations of our Group.

Mr. Yap has about 25 years of experience in the food industry. From
January 1996 to March 1998, Mr. Yap last served as the production
manager of Dan Kaffe (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., a coffee manufacturer, where
he was responsible for overall production. From April 1998 to August 1998,
Mr. Yap worked as the factory manager of S&P Food Industries, where he
was responsible for overseeing the production and packing department,
quality assurance department, purchasing and warehouse department and
maintenance department.

Mr. Yap received a bachelor of technology (with honours) in the field of food
technology from the Universiti Sains Malaysia in August 1991.

Ms. Wong Yuen Lee (“Ms. Wong”), aged 43, was appointed as our
Executive Director on 22 March 2017. Ms. Wong is also a member of the
Sanctions Oversight Committee. Ms. Wong is a director of S&P Industries,
a key operating subsidiary of the Company. She joined S&P Industries on 1
January 2008 as an executive secretary and was promoted as the human
resources manager in January 2011. She has been the general operations
manager of S&P Industries since March 2015. She is responsible for human
resources and information technology matters and supervising the
compliance department.
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Ms. Wong has about 15 years of experience in the food industry. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Wong worked as the retail operations executive of
Zitron Enterprise (M) Sdn. Bhd., a mobile phone distributor, from November
1999 to July 2004, where she was responsible for retail operations and
customer service. From December 2004 to December 2007, Ms. Wong
was the executive secretary of S&P Food Industries, responsible for
secretarial and administrative work.

Ms. Wong received a bachelor of art degree from the Universiti Putra
Malaysia, in July 1998.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony (B#%{&) (‘Mr. Fung’), aged 49, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 8 June 2017. Mr.
Fung is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Fung has extensive experience in accounting and corporate finance.
From August 1992 to September 1999, he successively served as a staff
accountant, semi senior accountant, senior accountant and manager in
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, where he was mainly responsible for audit
planning and control. From October 1999 to August 2007, Mr. Fung was a
director of Winsmart Consultants Limited (SARRIREERIERAR]), a
financial consulting company, where he was responsible for advising the
clients on corporate finance and investor relations related matters. From
January 2008 to August 2010, Mr. Fung was the vice president of
NagaCorp Limited (£ R#EARAT]), a licensed casino listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 3918), where he was responsible for
development of investor relations procedures, policies and strategies for the
company and liaison with investors as well as securities analysts. From
January 2011 to July 2014, Mr. Fung was the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Zall Development (Cayman) Holding Co., Ltd. (£
HEGES)IERAERAT) (how known as Zall Group Ltd. (EFEEERRH
fR /A F]), a property developer listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2098), where he was responsible for financial and compliance matters.
From July 2014 to April 2017, Mr. Fung was the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Kong Sun Holdings Limited (TIL3ZRAERAF), a
solar power plants investor and operator listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0295), where he was responsible for overall financial operation,
company secretarial matters and investor relations. From September 2014
to April 2017, Mr. Fung was an independent supervisor of Chery HuiYin
Motor Finance Service Co., Ltd. (FImEERAES RN AR AR, an
automobile finance joint venture, where he was responsible for monitoring
the company’s operations as a member of the board of supervisors.
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Mr. Fung has been an independent non-executive director of FY Financial
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (ZRBEME(RY)ERAF]), a financial services
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8452), since
April 2017, where he was responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice to the board of directors. Since May 2017, Mr. Fung
has been the chief financial officer of Beijing Enterprises Urban Resources
Group Co., Ltd. (bt EREE B A F), responsible for the overall
financial and investor relations matters.

Mr. Fung was admitted as a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom (“UK”) and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in October 2001 and September
2005, respectively. Mr. Fung received his bachelor’s degree in accountancy
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 1992.

Mr. Chong Yew Hoong (“Mr. Chong”), aged 63, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 8 June 2017. Mr. Chong is also the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. Chong served as the partner of the advisory services division and the
project consultant of Erst and Young Vietnam Limited from October 2007
to December 2010 and from January 2011 to June 2011, respectively.
From September 2011 to July 2014, he served as a member of the Council
of Members and a member of Council of Risk Management Committee of
Hong Leong Bank Vietnam Limited.

Mr. Chong has been a director of Tom Chong Business Advisory Services
Sdn. Bhd., a company principally engaged in the provision of corporate
restructuring, financial planning and executive training services, since
August 2011 and the director of Delta 5 Group Sdn. Bhd., a company
principally engaged in the provision of enterprise resource planning
implementation and consulting services, since May 2014. He has also been
a director of Finsoft Consulting Sdn. Bhd., a company principally engaged
in the provision of enterprise resource planning software and services, since
January 2017.

Mr. Chong was admitted as a certified public accountant of the Malaysia
Association of Certified Public Accountants in April 1982 and a member of
Malaysia Institute of Accountants in May 1985. Mr. Chong took a joint
examination organised by the University of Cambridge, in collaboration with
the University of Malaya, and obtained a Higher School Certificate,
incorporating a General Certificate of Education, in December 1975.
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Mr. Ng Hock Boon (“Mr. Ng’), aged 56, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 8 June 2017. Mr. Ng is also a
Member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He is responsible for providing independent advice
to our Board.

Mr. Ng has over 21 years of experience in company secretarial services.
From October 1993 to August 1996, he worked as an assistant manager of
corporate planning of Arab-Malaysian Merchant Bank Berhad, where he
assisted in the provision of group corporate planning. From May 1998 to
June 1999, Mr. Ng was the assistant general manager of Tru-Mix Concrete
Sdn. Bhd., a concrete manufacturer, where he was responsible for assisting
the general manager. From May 2001 to May 2005, Mr. Ng was the
corporate affairs and company secretary of Shanghai Chong Kee
Construction Sdn Bhd, a company which principally engages in interior
design and fitout works. From April 2005 to July 2011, he was the personal
assistant to the managing director of Shanghai Chong Kee Furniture and
Construction Private Limited.

Mr. Ng completed the company secretarial course of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of England in February 1985. Mr.
Ng was re-elected as an Associate of The Malaysian Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in January 2017. He received a diploma in
commerce (business management) from Tunku Abdul Rahman College in
Malaysia in June 1985 and a master’s degree of business administration
from The Cranfield Institute of Technology in England in June 1993.
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GROUP FINANCIAL CONTROLLER

Ms. Yap Siew Wei (“Ms. Yap”), aged 37, has been our group financial
controller since 4 April 2017 and is primarily responsible for the
management of financial and accounting matters.

Ms. Yap has about 15 years of experience in finance and accounting. From
April 2003 to November 2004, she worked as an audit associate of Deloitte.
From November 2004 to December 2008, she worked as an audit manager
of Ernst & Young, where she was mainly responsible for audit planning and
control. From December 2008 to December 2012, she worked as a group
finance manager of Hup Soon Global Corporation Limited principally
engaged in marketing and distribution of agricultural and industrial
equipment and formerly listed in Singapore, where she was responsible for
financial and compliance matters. From September 2013 to March 2017,
she served as a group senior finance manager of PSI Incontrol Sdn Bhd, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of PSI AG which is listed in Germany, company
providing engineering solutions for automation, control and protection
systems, where she was responsible for group reporting and finance
operation matters.

Ms. Yap obtained a bachelor’s degree in applied accounting from Oxford
Brookes University in association with the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the UK (*ACCA”) in 2002. She was admitted to fellowship
of the ACCA in 2012. She is also a member of Malaysian Institute of
Accountants.

R&D GENERAL MANAGER

Ms. Chew Mun Tho (“Ms. Chew”), aged 49, has been our research and
development (R&D) general manager since 1 March 2016 and is primarily
responsible for the management of our R&D and providing technical
support to our customers.

Ms. Chew has over 11 years of experience in the food industry. From
September 1994 to August 2014, Ms. Chew worked as a R&D manager of
Cadbury Confectionery Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., a company which produces
snack foods, where she was responsible for the overall management of
R&D.

Ms. Chew received a bachelor of technology degree from the University of
Science in Malaysia in August 1992.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the first Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) Report (the
“Report’) of S&P International Holding Limited (‘We”, “S&P” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”). This report
addresses a range of material impacts on the Group, outlining our
sustainability approaches and disclosing our ESG performances during the
period from 1 January to 31 December 2017 (the “Reporting Period”).

Unless otherwise stated, this Report mainly focuses on our core businesses
in the manufacturing and trading of coconut cream powder, low fat
desiccated coconut, coconut milk and other related products in Malaysia, i.e.
the headquarters (the “HQ”) and our plant in Perak (the “Perak Plant”),
which account for the majority of our total revenue during the Reporting
Period.

In compiling this Report, we are in compliance with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide set out in the
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “ESG Guide”).

We believe that understanding the views and opinions of our stakeholders
is of paramount importance to the long-term success and growth of an
enterprise which values environmental protection. Sustainable development
embraces not only our own ESG performance, but also our relationship
with stakeholders. As such, we are devoted to maintaining close and
harmonious relationships with our stakeholders. Continuous engagement
with our stakeholders, both formally and informally, enables us to recognise
our own strengths and weaknesses to better sharpen our business
strategies to respond to their needs and expectations, anticipate risks and
strengthen key relationships. We welcome feedback from our stakeholders.
If you have any opinions on this report or our sustainability initiatives, please
do not hesitate to send your feedback to info@spfood.com.

ABOUT US

As a preferred global supplier of coconut food products, we are passionate
to deliver quality coconut food products with their natural flavour and
nutritional attributes being presented in a convenient form to the world
whilst being committed to achieve superior results and share the success
with all parties involved.
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Core Values:

° Integrity

o Teamwork

° Loyalty, Trust and Respect

o Continuous Learning and Innovation

o Passion for our Customers

o Striving for Excellence

° Living the Hallmarks of Great Leadership

We have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since 11 July 2017 (the “Listing”).
During the Reporting Period, we have engaged in manufacturing and
trading food products, such as coconut cream powder, low fat desiccated
coconut, non-diary creamer, rice dumplings (ketupat) and toasted coconut
paste (kerisik), etc. We principally sell our products to the following
categories of customers, including OEM customers, distributors, industrial
customers, trading companies and wholesaler customers.

Our core products are manufactured at Perak Plant. We manufacture our
coconut cream powder by way of spray drying the natural coconut milk
extracted from selected fresh coconuts, to provide a versatile, easy to store
product that encapsulates the natural taste of coconut cream in an instant
and convenient form to our consumers. Being our best-selling core
product, our coconut cream powder is a cooking ingredient which is used
extensively in South-east Asian cuisine, and is also used widely within other
cuisines in other parts of the world.

Dedicated to Quality:

—  World-class technology for the freshest taste

—  Systematic manufacturing processes

—  Technological investments

—  Uncompromising quality control

Our products sold under our different brands, including “Santan”, “Cocos”
and “Rasa Enak”, are formulated differently and are sold to different market

sectors, in order to fulfil the different needs and requirements of our various
categories of customers.
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Sustainability Approach

Food products may be subject to continuous quality changes throughout
the supply chain . Hence, quality and safety control in the food distribution
process has always been our priority. In addition, climate changes and
other environmental issues are in a state of crisis. Given the increasing
attention on these sustainability issues, the Group is devoted to creating
values in a sustainable manner by enhancing positive influence and
ameliorating negative effects.

Five major aspects are identified as material.

SUPPLY CHAIN
HpEs

ENVIRONMENTAL
RE

PRODUCT QUALITY
mE

B

Other than the five major aspects mentioned above, we are committed to
the core values of delivering high quality and safe food products and
services, meeting customer expectations and complying with legal
requirements, and continually improving customers’ satisfaction and having
a quality management team.
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PRODUCTION

Quality

The quality and safety of our product is of utmost importance to the Group.
To achieve this, we have comprehensively and continuously improved our
quality control systems, for instance, being accredited with certifications
related to quality management and food safety, including HACCP system',
ISO 22000:2005% MS 1480:2007° and ISO 9001:2008*. Additionally, our
products have been certified HALAL® and KOSHER?®, enabling our products
to be sold to customers of various ethnic communities. We believe that
these certifications could provide our customers assurance of our quality
and standard when they purchase and consume our products.

Other than the above mentioned certifications, we set forth below
information relating to the material licences, permits and certificates
required in conducting our business during the Reporting Period:

° Manufacturing license (Issued by Ministry of International Trade and
Industry of Malaysia)

° Food premises license (Issued by Ministry of Health of Malaysia)

° Permit of scheduled controlled goods (Issued by Ministry of Domestic
Trade, Co-operatives and Consumerism of Malaysia)

! HACCP stands for Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point, which is an internationally
recognized system for managing and reducing the risk of safety and potential hazards to
ensure food safety.

2 ISO 22000:2005 is prepared by the International Organization for Standardization,
specifying requirements for a food safety management system where an organization in
the food chain needs to demonstrate its ability to control food safety hazards in order to
ensure that food is safe at the time of human consumption.

8 MS 1480:2007 is the Malaysian Standard based on food safety system.

4 ISO 9001:2008 is prepared by the International Organization for Standardization,
specifying requirements for a quality management system.

5 HALAL Certification means that a product is complied with the code of conduct and the
sanitary laws of the Islamic doctrine. It requires the value chain including raw material,
processing procedure and storage is certified.

6 Kosher certification is a process by which a company ensures that the product fits for
consumption by observant Jews, where the certification requires every ingredients and
the production processes are certified for orthodox kosher-compliance. Kosher refers to
a set of intricate biblical laws that detail the types of food that a Jewish person may eat
and the ways in which it may be prepared.
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° Industry and trading licence (Issued by Teluk Intan Municipal Council
& Petaling Jaya Municipal Council in Malaysia)

° Business licence (Issued by Petaling Jaya Municipal Council & Batu
Pahat Municipal Council in Malaysia)

° Food establishment licence (Issued by Petaling Jaya Municipal
Council in Malaysia)

Monitoring food production process and raw material quality is critical to
avoid any contamination. An in-house chemical and microbiological testing
laboratory has been set up to conduct the quality checking on the incoming
materials in accordance with various certification systems. It is one of the
most important safeguards to detect any incoming materials which are not
up to our quality standard. Our production system is fully automated and
centrally monitored, allowing us to deliver high quality products to our
customers consistently.

In order to produce high quality products that are safe for human
consumption, we have implemented strict and comprehensive quality
assurance procedures, such as the HACCP standard, which is an
internationally recognised management system addressing food safety,
throughout all stages of our production, from our procurement of raw
materials to the packaging and delivery of our finished products.

HACCP is used in the food industry to identify potential food safety hazards,
so that key actions, which are known as the Critical Control Points, can be
taken to reduce or eliminate the risk of the hazards which have been
identified. It is a set of internationally recognised principles which have been
widely promoted and incorporated into food safety legislation in many
countries around the world.

Quality control process: Pre-production phase (packaging
and raw materials)

All of our incoming raw materials are checked carefully by our Quality
Control Department. Coconuts and white kernels are checked in respect of
their weight, acidity level, physical appearance and odour, while other raw
ingredients are checked based on their certificates or labels prepared by
the suppliers to make sure they conform to the description of goods
ordered, physical condition, moisture content and manufacturing date. For
packaging materials that come into contact with our food products, we
take swab tests and conduct microbiological analysis. If there is any
affected product, it would be separately managed.

o T EME S M (A S K Teluk Intan
Municipal Council }2 Petaling Jaya Municipal
Council 78 2)

o EEHMB(AF KA & Petaling Jaya
Municipal Council }2 Batu Pahat Municipal
Council 4 %)

o R M AR (M 5 2R 7 28 Petaling Jaya
Municipal Council 78 % )
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Quality control process: Production phase (intermediate
products)

Upon the mixing of our intermediate products, our Quality Control
Department carries out sampling tests on their acidity levels by chemical
analysis to monitor the consistency and quality of our products.

At our first critical control point, which occurs during the pasteurisation
stage, our spray dryer operator carefully monitors the pasteurisation
temperature at regular intervals.

After our semi-finished products have been sieved, they are subject to a
screening process in our metal detector to check whether the powder has
been contaminated by any metal fragments.

Quality control process: Post-production phase (finished
products)

Our finished products are subject to a final comprehensive test by our
Quality Control Department, which carries out random sampling checks
and physico-chemical analysis on acidity and moisture levels, density,
solubility, carbohydrate, protein and fat content, and presence of ash. Our
quality control department carries out a final microbiological test on
presence of any bacteria and pathogens, such as E.coli, coliform,
salmonella, yeast and mould.

For the packaging of our finished products, we have used several
packaging materials, including PE bag, Woven Bag, Kraft Paper, Carton
Box and Aluminium Foil. We have approximately 230 types of packaging
materials purchased from suppliers with good credentials, and we have
recorded the weight of packaging materials purchased during the year” on
the resource planning system of our Enterprise, Microsoft Navision (‘ERP
system”). We monitor the quality of packaging materials from time to time.
We strive to ensure our finished products are safe for human consumption
and with the freshest taste.

Total Packing Materials used for Finished Products (tonnes) &A% 54 BT A 2 28 &1 kL 48 £ (188)

Metal (tonnes) &3 (WR)
Paper (tonnes) 4% (18)
Others (tonnes) H A (ME)
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BB BN EZFERREEREHER
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E¥pmiok eRecBRASFEHR
NBRENRKREEXEMNSBEBTR -

HEZFRE SERBR(EARM)

HPMOEKRAKREEENABETRR
2EAR BEZEVWABRETREEMERSES
REBIEDH REBEREKE BE &
BE - WKEEY ZEABEREMEENR
ERE-HEERFIMSETHERMEDA
A BRERLTBEABRE KEE DK
B BSEMEESAREMNRRE -

REMEXNGHBERS RMUEATZE
BEME BEBHS FEUS FREHE-
MAEANBEEH FR - HMUEBRTEEMNMH
ERERE T A0 EMKE X BREM
) £7 B = 2l & %% Enterprise, Microsoft Navision
([ERPEGZ DU ATRBENEEM B EZ N
R -BRMTREEREMBNEE & H
BERBMOEKBULZEZRARERFTA -

733.1
202.1
500.6

30.4

Total Packing Materials used for Finished Products (tonnes/ #4755 Fr FE & 5 1 k) 48 25 (M W8 4 FE B8 fi7)

tonne of Production Unit)

0.12

7 “Others” mean the PE bag and Woven Bag used for finished products.
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Occupational Health and Safety

There are potential hazards in food production plant, and thus securing the
safety, health and welfare of our staff is essential.

We place great emphasis on matters related to work safety. We require our
staff and workers to attend regular training sessions on work safety,
chemical handling and fire safety awareness. We also place adequate
warning signs around our production sites to warn and remind our staff and
workers of safety issues. We have adopted safe operating procedures to
ensure the safety of our workers at our production sites, and our safety
officers are responsible for overseeing our compliance with occupational
health and safety regulations.

During the Reporting Period, we were committed to operating in
compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1994 and all other
applicable laws and regulations. We have established a work and
environment safety committee, comprising representatives from our factory
managers and production managers, and from the Human Resources
Department, who meet quarterly to discuss and address matters related to
environmental issues of our Group, as required by the Department of
Occupational Safety and Health.

We also maintain employer’s liability insurance, public liability insurance
against any damages caused to third parties and consequential loss
insurance policies. We have also taken out an insurance policy against any
damage that may be caused by our biomass boiler.

ENVIRONMENT

Climate change could influence food security and food supply chain to
varying extents. Along the food supply chain, energy, water and other
resources are consumed in every step by transport, manufacture and
package of our goods. In light of this, the Group has taken initiatives that
facilitate adherence of our operations on the environment to relevant laws
and regulations such as Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent)
Regulations 2009 of Malaysia. Additionally, evolving regulatory requirements
and increasing stakeholders’ expectation on environmental issues serve as
the impetus for establishing a systematic and quantitative approach to
manage the environmental emissions and resources.
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Description R Figure ¥
Air Emission REBHEHRE

Nitrogen Oxide [NOx] (tonnes) REALP[NOX] (HE) 7.92

Sulphur Oxide [SOx] (tonnes) i Gt ¥ [SOx] (ME) 1.05

Particulate Matter [PM] (tonnes) B2 ERLPM] () 18.89
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1 and 2) (tonnes of CO2e) B =REEgmE 2 (S E1%2)

(B — S|t E 2) 11,727.29

GHG Emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes of CO,e)? BEREERE (EE) (B _StixkgEE)° 9,821.96

GHG Emissions (Scope 2) (tonnes of CO,e)° /?;ﬁ CHENE (BE2) (M _atixE£)° 1,905.33

GHG Emissions (Biogenic) (tonnes of CO,e)" RERBHHRE (EWR) (B_ftReE=E)" 9,427.53
Production Unit'! (tonnes) i? 847" () 6,089.26
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1 and 2) per Production Unit G4 E S =R e S (B E1KE2)

(tonnes of CO2e/tonne of Production Unit) (=& b E E/I@E EEBAMA) 1.93
Energy Consumption (KWh) BEROE FE (T RLES) 4,132,979.14

Purchased Electricity (kWh) % B (TR 2,571,301.90

Diesel (kWh) Seom (F FLE) 1,527,265.69

Biomass (KWh) EYE (:FEET) 34,411.55
Energy Consumption per Production Unit (kWh/tonne of & 4 B i s8R S #5

Production Unit) (FRK MEEBEN) 678.73
Water Consumption (m?) KIBFE (L7 K) 98,567
Water Consumption per Production Unit (m®tonne of EEBMNKERE

Production Unit) (LK WEAEEBAL) 16.19
Hazardous Waste BEEREY

SW 409 (tonnes) SW 409 (W) 0.52
Hazardous Waste per Production Unit (kg/tonne of BEEBEMNEEEY

Production Unit) (T MEAEEA) 0.08
Non-Hazardous Waste'? mEREY"

Plastic (tonnes) 2B} (WE) 35.15

Paper (tonnes) 4 o (W8) 24.44

Other General Waste (tonnes) H fth— A% = ¥ (WR) 1,070.71
Non-Hazardous Waste per Production Unit (tonne/tonne EEBMEEEY (W WEAEEBAN)

of Production Unit) 0.19

Scope 1 Direct Emissions: In accordance with The Greenhouse Gas Protocol — A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (Revised Edition), published by World
Business Council for Sustainable Development and World Resources Institute, Scope 1
Direct Emissions are those emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by the
company.

Scope 2 Indirect Emissions: In accordance with The Greenhouse Gas Protocol — A
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard (Revised Edition), published by World
Business Council for Sustainable Development and World Resources Institute, Scope 2
Indirect Emissions are those emissions resulting from the generation of purchased or
acquired electricity, heating, cooling and steam consumed within the company.

Biogenic Emissions: In accordance with The Greenhouse Gas Protocol — A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard (Revised Edition), published by World Business
Council for Sustainable Development and World Resources Institute, emissions data for
direct GHG emissions from combustion of biomass or biofuels should be reported
separately.

Production Unit is determined by the product types in the unit of kg, including coconut
cream powder, low fat desiccated coconut, testa, brown skin, etc.

Regarding the Non-Hazardous Waste, the amount disclosed for Plastic and Paper are
related to the quantity recycled while the Other General Waste, which is Rejected
Coconut, would be sold to the third party.
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Emission and Resource Management

Air emission and effluent monitoring indicates the effectiveness of mitigation
measures, thereby regular analysis on the relevant data is conducted.
Effluent analysis is carried out in accordance with Environmental Quality
(Industrial Effluent) Regulation 2009 of Malaysia, twice a month, with the
use of analysis parameters including Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD),
Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD), pH and so forth.

For air emission management, smoke density meter is adopted for regular
monitoring. Additionally, Isokinetic stack sampling and air emission
monitoring are conducted by third party laboratory regularly to comply with
the requirement of Environmental Quality (Clean Air) Regulations 2014 of
Malaysia. For the sake of enhancing monitoring, the Continuous Emission
Monitoring (CEM) System, which is multi-component and can monitor
multiple gas species simultaneously, is installed at key emission exhaust for
trial. Upon successful trial completion, the system will come into operation.

Hazardous waste is produced from our production process The applicable
waste code for such hazardous waste is SW 409 which refers to disposed
containers, bags, or equipment contaminated with chemicals or scheduled
wastes as specified in the Environmental Quality (Scheduled Wastes)
Regulations 2005 of Malaysia.

We primarily discharge liquid waste from our production process at our
Perak Plant. Our liquid waste is generated from our Clean-in-place (CIP)
system, which discharges nitric and caustic acid. We also discharge liquid
waste as part of the process of cleaning our white kernels. We treat the
liquid waste from our production process with our on-site industrial effluent
treatment plant before it is discharged.

Our waste is mainly the residual ash from burning coconut shells in our
biomass boiler for generating heat energy. Our biomass boailer is inspected
by both the Department of Environment and the Department of
Occupational Safety and Health once a year. We have installed a system
that monitors the emissions from our biomass boiler as required by the
Department of Environment.

During the Reporting Period, we have complied with the relevant
requirements of the Environmental Quality Act 1974 and Environmental
Quality (Sewage and Industrial Effluents) Regulations 2009 of Malaysia.
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Mitigation and Reduction Initiatives

To reduce air emission from our production, we seek to utilise every part of
the coconut. We have switched to use bio-fuel instead of fossil fuel since
2013 as the former can utilise the waste-to-energy technology. Thus, our
diesel oil boiler has been suspended thereafter.

As the continuing increase in waste generation in Malaysia has been
associated with the growing population and the growing economy, the
Group is dedicated to implement waste reduction measures and even
extend the waste life cycle. We have identified that lots of coconut shells
are produced during our manufacturing process. Therefore, we collect and
burn the coconut shells as bio-fuel for our biomass boiler to produce the
heat required in our production process. With the introduction of biomass
boiler, the coconut shells are used for combustion, thereby saving
substantially on fuel costs at the same time. In addition, 59.59 tonne of our
paper and plastic waste are recycled.

For paper usage reduction, as mentioned above, we have completed the
Listing during the Reporting Period. The White Form elPO service was
introduced to save the use of papers via the self-service and electronic
application process. Meanwhile, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, being our designated White Form elPO service provider,
has contributed HK$2 for each of our White Form elPO application to
support the funding of “Source of DongJiang-Hong Kong Forest” project
initiated by Friends of the Earth (HK).

We have initiated the awareness program on environmental policies at our
HQ and Perak Plant, including sharing of different environmental policies
and data analysis review at the billboard and entrance with our employees
and stakeholders, and attending the sessions on environmental protection
organized by the Department of Environment of Malaysia.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report continued)

During the Reporting Period, we have started to implement the following
programs to achieve the mitigation initiatives:

Programs

it

R HEKERRE®

RBEHE RMCHEBAT IIFEEE
BB HE

Content
AR

Bento Campaign
BHMITH
Think Before Printing

5| EN BT & 8

Poster on Water Efficiency

ENK B R

Environmental Day

B
Monthly Tips
REE+
Save Energy
Z’] BE /

EMPLOYMENT TYPE BB % 5

Encourage staff to bring their own food containers from home in order to reduce the use of plastic
or polystyrene containers which give rise to food and solid wastage

FEHEINRREEFTER ROGCAZHABRRLGER BRELRYEERERBESR
¥

A notification message of “Please consider the environment before printing” would be generated
for each email.

EEHEFEHM4 EEKIFERIIDAIZEREINBMAEE -

Posters with the reminder of “Save the Water” would be placed near the taps of each water supply
system, such as canteen area, sinks, etc.

EERE KO ESHEBKZRRHKEBRM TR TELRAKINRRER -

A monthly one-hour seminar would be organized to share knowledge, tips and information about
saving our environment.

BRAEBRYE -/ IKOMFE »EZFRERRFOHMNE BT REH-

Tips on saving the environment would be shared to all staff by email on monthly basis
BREREFHMEXEBETIHNZTRBERBEREN L -

A message of “If you don’t use it, turn it off” would be put at the billboard of HQ and Perak Plant

ERBEBBRIMNAEE LERAIFETNERSSEBEAINEER -

B ZE
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® Senior Management SR EEE ® 20—30% ® 31—40%%
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Technical/General Worker 317,38 T A
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OUR PEOPLE

We have been adhering to the people-oriented business philosophy, to
provide our staff with a harmonious working environment and development
platform.

The followings display the distributions of our employees across the
country:

As at 31 December 2017, we have employed a total of 238 employees in
Malaysia, while 146 of them are local workers and 92 of them are
foreigners.

Employment and Remuneration

Our work force is one of our most valuable assets and is crucial to our
Group’s operations and success. During the Reporting Period, we have
adopted a recruitment procedure to standardise hiring staff for our Group.
For employees at the managerial level, our Directors’ approval is required.
All other positions may be approved by our respective heads of different
departments.

We believe that our remuneration package to our employees is in line with
the practice of local industries. We endeavour to provide competitive
remuneration package and various benefits to attract and retain our talents.
Remuneration packages are comprised of basic salary, incentive bonus
scheme (which encourages employees to improve their individual
performance and their departmental performance) and leaves including
marriage, maternity, and replacement leaves.

During recruitment, we take a variety of factors into account, such as our
development plans, vacancies within our Group, work experience and
education background of the candidates, regardless of their age, gender,
nationality or race. Being an inclusive employer, we will uphold the principle
of equal opportunity in the workplace to the greatest extent. We shall not
tolerate any case of discrimination against our people.

There are a number of roles within our Group that have to be filled by
personnel with the requisite skillset, work experience, educational
background or qualification. For example, our project manager position
requires a bachelor’s degree in engineering or equivalent qualification. Our
quality assurance executives are required to have a degree, diploma or
equivalent qualification in food technology or food science. Our boilerman
are required to obtain a boiler certificate issued by the Department of
Occupational Safety and Health (Jabatan Keselamatan Dan Kesihatan
Pekerja of Malaysia). Our R&D staff are required to have degrees in food
technology or food science, and to have at least three years of relevant
work experiences.
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We generally enter into a standard form of employment contract with our
employees, which contain confidentiality clauses and standard restrictive
covenants. We generally hire our employees through traditional recruitment
channels. We believe that we have a good working relationship with our
employees. During the Reporting Period, we did not experience any major
labour disputes, work stoppages or labour strikes.

We provide group hospitalisation and personal accident insurance for
certain eligible employees at our own discretion. In order to enhance the
sense of belonging and cohesiveness among our employees, we arrange
company trip for both local and foreign workers from time to time.

Development and Training

To attract and retain talents, the Group is committed to developing the
potential of our employees by building up employee’s abilities in his or her
current position. Our Human Resources Department would establish an
annual training plan in accordance with the ISO9001:2008 requirements for
a quality management system. The Group would require all new staff to
participate in an orientation training before the start of their work. Our
employees will receive internal and external training, together with on-the-
job trainings, to improve their understanding and knowledge of work safety
issues and hazard identification, risk assessments and risk control issues.
Performance evaluation would be carried out every year by evaluating the
Key Performance Indicator of each individual. To promote a more eco-
friendly working environment, the Group has started the renovation in the
HQ at the end of the year by bringing along with the concept of open-
mindedness.

All directors, including the independent non-executive directors, should
keep abreast of their responsibilities as directors and our business activities.
Directors are required to attend the training during the Reporting Period to
reinforce their knowledge and skills as a director, and provide updates on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate
them to discharge their responsibilities.

Labour Standards

We fully adopt and adhere to the human rights framework that creates an
environment where human rights issues can be openly discussed. We are
committed to do the right thing and we encourage our workers to engage
in candid and respectful dialogue to explore feasible solutions. In order to
eliminate and prevent the use of child labour, all new employees are
required to provide their official identity documents for inspection.
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During the Reporting Period, we have been in stringent compliance with the
laws and regulations in Malaysia relevant to the Labour Standards as

follows:

° The
° The
° The
e The

Employment Act 1955 (“EA 1955”)

regulates all labour relations including contracts of service,
payment of wages, employment of women, rest days, hours of
work, termination, lay-off and retirement benefits and keeping of
registers of employees.

defines employee as any person, irrespective of his occupation,
who has entered into a contract of service with an employer
under which such person’s wages do not exceed RM2,000 a
month.

provides that in the event where the terms of the employment
of an employee are inconsistent with the minimum standards
provided under EA 1955, the more favourable terms will prevail
and apply to the employees.

Employees Provident Fund Act 1991

imposes the statutory obligations on employers and employees
to make contribution towards the employees’ provident fund
which shall serve as a saving scheme for retirement purposes
of an employee.

Employees’ Social Security Act 1969

provides social security in certain contingencies and other
relevant matters and it shall apply to all industries having one or
more employees.

Immigration Act 1955 (“IA 1955”) (For Foreign

employees only)

no person other than a citizen shall enter Malaysia unless he or
she is in possession of a valid entry permit or exemption is
granted to him or her pursuant to IA 1955.

Anti-corruption

Maintaining integrity and respectable business ethics is paramount to the

Group’s continued success.

In order to cultivate an ethical corporate

culture and practices, our no-gift policy prohibits any behaviour that may
harm the company’s interests and ethics, such as bribery, corruption and
fraud. Such policy is reviewed and updated periodically to ensure its
appropriateness and compliance with the relevant laws.
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During the Reporting Period, there was no pending or concluded legal
proceedings regarding corruption brought against the Group or any of our
employees.

SUPPLY CHAIN

Quality of the raw material is of prime importance to our product quality.
Thus, it is vital to implement systematic management on key players along
the supply chain.

We have adopted standardised procurement procedures in order to
improve the efficiency of our operations, including: (i) conducting weekly
reviews of inventory balances and planning purchases accordingly; (ii)
conducting supplier assessments; (iii) issuing purchase requisitions and
obtaining approvals; (iv) obtaining price quotations from suppliers; (v)
issuing purchase orders; and (vi) receiving supplies.

We have adopted a customer complaint policy and a product return policy
to handle complaints from our customers regarding the quality of our
products, and to ensure any returned products are properly documented
and accounted for, including (i) verifying the customer’s complaint; (ii)
conducting quality testing on the alleged sub-standard product; (iii) if our
products are proved to be defective, following up on the relevant complaint
with our customer and our factory,; and (iv) addressing the issues giving
rise to the quality issues or defective packaging.

We also maintain product liability insurance to cover any liabilities arising
from the sale of our products.

PRIVACY PROTECTION

Protecting customer privacy is one of our responsibilities. We place
importance on protecting the privacy of customers in the collection,
processing and use of their personal data. We adhere to the applicable
data protection regulations and ensure appropriate technical measures are
in place to protect personal data against any unauthorized use or access.
We also ensure that customers’ personal data is securely kept and
processed only for the purpose for which it has been collected. Our staff
are provided with adequate training in compliance with applicable laws on
data privacy protection, to increase their awareness of safeguarding
personal data.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to invest in the community in which we live and
operate by continuously engaging them to achieve long-term and
sustainable outcomes that benefits the community as a whole. Community
engagement is how our Group and our employees enrich the places that
we live in and work at, beyond providing jobs or paying taxes.

INDEX TO THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE
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Chapter/Disclosure Page
B/ BE BER

A. Environmental
ARE
Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA: EBRY

General Disclosure °
Information on:
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

_ﬁﬁgg °

EMEREERRAN - KROS5 S EREEEE
MR EE A

() B &

(b) THETABEAZENEBEEZRRMNBEER -

KPI A1 .1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. °
RABEAE  HERMWIESE AR B B B R - .
EEALA

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where appropriate,

intensity.

BRENR RERBEFNRER(WERTE - .
EIRAL2

Environment 23

B

Environment 24
BB

Environment 24

BB
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Chapter/Disclosure Page
B/ BB BR
KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, Environment 23
intensity.
FRENX MELASEEVHEER(WMER)TE - e IR
EIEA13
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and where ° Environment 23
appropriate, intensity.
BRENR MELERSEEDESR(WER)TE - e IR
EIZA14
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results Mitigation and Reduction 26
achieved. Initiatives
FRAEN MMUREBERENEERMEKR - o B ROBIKIEM
EIEA1S
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes e Emission and Resource 25
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved. Management
MBEEN HMOAREAEREZTEEVNIE REELENE e« RO EEREIRE
BIEA16 HERAERR-
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: EREA
General Disclosure ° Emission and Resource 25
Management
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and ° Mitigation and Reduction 26
other raw materials. Initiatives
Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings,
electronic equipment, etc.
— MR e HHWMEERER
o EREFOBIKIEE
BRERER(BIEGER KEREMEMR) K-
i BRAAREE - #7788 BF BFIHEZ-
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total Environment 23
and intensity.
BREN RELESHEERER SHEEREEEREE - e IRIE
FEIZA2.1
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. ° Environment 23
HAREN BREKEREE- o IBIE

FEIZA2.2
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Chapter/Disclosure Page
5/ BB =N
KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results e Emission and Resource 25
achieved. Management
MBEN Mg RERNRTERMAEKR - e HHMKREREIRE
FEIEA2.3
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water e Mitigation and Reduction 26
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results Initiatives
achieved.
BREN MOKEEAAKREATEEMME  UREABKK o &R KEIEEE
BIZA24 WETEIRFTEAR -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products, and if e Quality control process: 22
applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Post-production phase (finished
products)

MsER HARAAERMANEER(WER) BEEEMA HEEHRRE:
EIZA25 E- EERBREEXR)

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EFEEA3: RERXARER

General Disclosure ° Environment 23
° Mitigation and Reduction 26

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment Initiatives

and natural resources.

— R E . BN

o MR RORIKIEIE
WIEBTAHRERRAERENERTZENBER -
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the ° Mitigation and Reduction 26
environment and natural resources and the actions taken Initiatives
to manage them.
BREN HMAXBIHHRERRAAERNEATZERDERI
BIZA31 EBEBHETENTH-

B LR ERE
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Chapter/Disclosure

B/ HE

Page
BR

B. Social
B.&&
Employment and Labour Practices

ERBRETER

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1: EE

General Disclosure
Information on:
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.

—RRIEE

ERFMLEE HEREN THERE BY FEEES 2T
b~ RIEAR AR B Al 5 38 o ta F Y

(@ BEK: &

b) BFHETAGEAZENHBEEZLBRONES -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
and geographical region.

AN MR EREAL  FiRERN BRI SNES B -
E1EB11
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

BRENR EUR FRANEMEESNESERKLE -

HIZB1.2

Employment and 28
Remuneration

1 1% K % B

Employment and 28
Remuneration

12 1% B3 B

Not disclosed for this —
Reporting Period
I 2 HA ) 0 A 4 EE
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Chapter/Disclosure Page
B/ RE BR
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: REEZZ
General Disclosure ° Occupational Health and 23
Safety
Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer. relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
— MR EE e RBERmREZD
FARHZ2TERRELRREEERPBEEEEN
@ X R
b) BTFTHETAGEAZENHBZEEZLBROINEH -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. ° Occupational Health and 23
Safety
MBEN FEIEREMETH AR R E- s BiXEEREZRE
E1EB2.1
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. o Not disclosed for this —
Reporting Period
BEENR FEIGHRAIEBRR- e  AWEMMIEEE
E1EB2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures ° Occupational Health and 23
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. Safety

BABEER WU BEEFREATE2EGE URBAERTR ¢« HBE@EREZTSE
E1EB2.3 EEmgiL o
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Chapter/Disclosure Page
B/ RE BR

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : &R R

General Disclosure ° Development and Training 29

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging

duties at work. Description of training activities.

— R o EREMEI

AR EERITIEBRENMBRRRENER - HBIES

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and ° Not disclosed for this —

employee category. Reporting Period

BEENR HUNKEERFZESNXIEEBD L - s AREHEVTEEE

#5153 B3.1

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by ° Not disclosed for this —

gender and employee category. Reporting Period

MBEER RUBNKEERMNES  BEEETKIIN TR o«  ApEHHMITEEKE

JEI1ZB3.2 -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

fEEB4 : & T 28|

General Disclosure o Labour Standards 29

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
— MR EE o BT AR

BEREMILETHRGISETH:
@ BXR:&

() BEIFTEHBHTABEATENRBEEEZRAMNNER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.

BREN W BREENNEEAREET RREIST -
§15B4.1

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

BgEN it
51ZB4.2

AR ERIEARER B BB LRI LR -

Not disclosed for this
Reporting Period
7N 2 HA ) 0 A 4 ER

Not disclosed for this
Reporting Period
7N HA ) 0 A 4 FR
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Chapter/Disclosure Page
B/ RE BR
Operating Practices
ZEED
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EMEBS : fitpEdEEE
General Disclosure ° Supply Chain 31
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
— B EE o fEEER
EEHERNIRE T ERRIE -
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. ° Not disclosed for this —
Reporting Period
BREN mMRIONHHEFEE - e AREHEITEEE
1512 B5.1
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, ° Not disclosed for this —
number of suppliers where the practices are being Reporting Period

implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
BREN WA EHERERHEERNED  mERTAEBIEN M
E1EB52 EEHBE ULEBEMNNRITRERTE-

2N 3 o5 HA R 3 4 B PR

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6: EmEE

General Disclosure ° Production — Quality 20
° Supply Chain 31
Information on: ° Privacy Protection 31

(@ the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

—Qﬁﬁ L4 Eg_gi
o fHpEsE

FHEMREERNBRENRERELZ S  ES SHEDLEETI . = FLAR &

KA IT AR

@ HE: K

) BFEHETABEAFENHABEERBEONNER -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to ° Not disclosed for this —
recalls for safety and health reasons. Reporting Period

MREN CDEXDEXAERESTRL2EEREBAMARY o« AHpEHMATEEKEE

EiEB6.1 HWE DL
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Chapter/Disclosure Page

B/ RE BR

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints ° Not disclosed for this —
received and how they are dealt with. Reporting Period

MBEN EERREREBREORFHBIUAREYETE- o  AWREHBEIEWRE
E1ZB6.2

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and ° Not disclosed for this —
protecting intellectual property rights. Reporting Period

BREN WREAERRENBREEEBANED - e AREHEWEEE

¥512B6.3

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall ° Production — Quality 20
procedures.

BREN WmiESRTARERERDKIERF - s HE-HEE

1512864

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy ° Privacy Protection 31

policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

BREN HWERHEEARRERLBER URBEHRITRE « RBLRE
BIZB6S WAL
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEEB7: RES
General Disclosure ° Anti-corruption 30
Information on:
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.
— MR J R&S
BB IEHE BR- MEFREREN:
@ BX: X
b) BITHETAGEAZENHBERZLBROINEH -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt ° Anti-corruption 30
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
BRENR RERPAEBTAXEREERLETEELENETHF« RES

EIEB71 AARMHMEB RFAER-

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Not disclosed for this —
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. Reporting Period

BREN MO HEEREREF UREBENTRERF ¢« AREHBEIEEE

EIZB7.2 ke
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Chapter/Disclosure Page
B/ RE =N
Community
Aspect B8 : Community Investment
EHEBS: HERE
General Disclosure ° Community Investment 32
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.
— MK e HEEHE
FRANHBR2ERTHRETACEMELRFZNBEREERE
HEETRELEMEABER -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. ° Not disclosed for this —
Reporting Period
AR HIaR#ER- o ARIEHIRIWMEE
615 B8.1
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. ° Not disclosed for this —
Reporting Period
BMREN THEITHEMBAZER- e AREHEIEEE

¥E1%B8.2
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and trading of food products.
The core products include coconut cream powder and low fat dessicated
coconut, manufactured at the Group’s manufacturing facility located at
Bagan Datoh, Perak, Malaysia (the “Perak Plant”), which is equipped with
a multi-stage spray dryer which is fully automated and monitored centrally
ensuring high quality and stable production. The Group also manufactures
other food products, such as non-dairy creamer and other traditional
South-east Asian traditional food ingredients, such as rice dumplings (ketupat)
and toasted coconut paste (kerisik).

The Group is committed to delivering high quality and safe food products
and services, meeting customers’ expectations and complying with legal
requirements, and continually improving customers’ satisfaction and having
a quality management team. It implements comprehensive and strict quality
assurance procedures throughout all stages of the production, from the
procurement of raw materials to the packaging and delivery of the finished
products. In this regard, the Group has been accredited with various
certifications in relation to quality management and food safety.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s revenue was approximately RM96.5 milion for FY2017,
representing an increase of approximately 7.5%, or RM6.7 million, when
compared with that for FY2016 of approximately RM89.8 million.

E 3 JCI) -

AEBENRERBEERB G ZLUEMRERE
7N & B i 7 S 2K 78 5 B% 22 Bagan Datoh /9 4
Exi((BEIM])EEM RN &R
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E-ASENAEHMRR  WHBREM
R E AR o R (0 SRR (ketupat) & &
10 & (kerisik)) ©
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BFE-BtME ARECHAFHEEER

RERLZEESZERE -
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The Group’s cost of sales increased by approximately 9.8%, or RM5.8
million, from approximately RM59.2 million for FY2016 to approximately
RM65.0 million for FY2017, which was attributable primarily to significant
price increment of the major raw materials, coconuts and white kernels.
Nonetheless, gross profit for FY2017 increased by approximately 2.9%, or
RMO0.9 million when compared with that for FY2016 in tandem with the
increase in revenue.

A combination of () the selling price increase is less than the significant
increase in cost of coconuts (major raw material of coconut cream powder)
and (i) appreciation of RM against United States Dollars (“USD”), resulted
in a gross margin compression from approximately 34.0% in FY2016 to
approximately 32.6% in FY2017.

Coconut cream powder

The Group’s best-selling product is coconut cream powder. Production of
coconut cream powder went through a tumultuous period in the second
and third quarter of 2017. In response to a sudden change in the supply
and demand situation in the coconut market in the second and third
quarters of 2017, the cost of coconuts surged to unprecedented levels.
This has significantly impacted the performance of the Group for the year.
Revenue for coconut cream powder for FY2017 was approximately RM82.5
million, which increased by approximately RM3.4 million as compared to
FY2016 of approximately RM79.1 million. The increase in revenue for
coconut cream powder for FY2017 was attributable primarily to the
increase in average selling price of approximately 9.4%, partially offset by a
decrease in sales volume by approximately 4.6% as compared to FY2016.

AEENHEERAR T - NFHRFED
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Low fat desiccated coconut

Revenue for low fat desiccated coconut for FY2017 was approximately
RM7.3 million, an increase of approximately RM3.8 million as compared to
that for FY2016 of approximately RM3.5 million. The increase was
attributable primarily to a significant increase in sales volume by
approximately 101.5%.

Coconut milk

Revenue for coconut milk for FY2017 was approximately RM2.2 million, a
reduction by approximately RM1.2 million as compared to that for FY2016
of approximately RM3.4 million. This was attributable mainly to a significant
decrease in sales volume by approximately 43.3%, primarily caused by the
inability of the Group’s Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) suppliers
of coconut milk to fulfil supply requirements in FY2017. Consequently, the
Group had not been able to meet the demand for coconut milk products
from its customers. To address this situation, the Group is sourcing for new
OEM suppliers to meet customers demand in the short term. For the longer
term, in addition to the network of OEM suppliers, the Group plans to
expand and upgrade its production facilities at its Perak Plant, the
construction works for which shall commence shortly.

Other income

This comprises mainly of rental income, sale of scrap items and net foreign
currency exchange gain, if any. In FY2017, whilst the property rental
income remained fairly stable at approximately RMO0.2 million, the Group did
not have any net foreign exchange gain (but instead suffered a net foreign
exchange loss, as explained in ‘Other expenses’ below) due mainly to the
appreciation of RM against USD in relation to the settlement and
retranslation of USD-denominated trade receivables of the Group, as
compared to the net foreign exchange gain of RM1.2 million in FY2016.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses remained relatively stable at
approximately RM5.6 million for both FY2017 and FY2016.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately 150.0%,
or RM12.0 million from approximately RM8.0 million for FY2016 to
approximately RM20.0 million for FY2017, attributable primarily to the
incurrence of the one-off and non-recurring Listing expenses of
approximately RM13.2 million.
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Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses for FY2017 were approximately RM1.5 million,
which were mainly made up of net foreign exchange loss. This arose
primarily from the appreciation of RM against the USD during FY2017.

Net finance costs

The Group’s net finance costs were reduced from approximately RM0.3
million in FY2016 to approximately RM0.2 million in FY2017. Whilst finance
cost remained largely stable, the Group recorded finance income of
approximately RM0.2 million in FY2017, primarily earned from interest
income on unutilised net proceeds from the initial public offering exercise,
pending their deployment for the Group’s future expansion plans.

Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense decreased by approximately 10.2%, or
RMO0.5 million from approximately RM4.9 million for FY2016 to
approximately RM4.4 million for FY2017, which was primarily in line with a
decrease in the profit before tax, leading to a decrease in the taxable profit.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company

The Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of approximately RMO0.4 million for FY2017, as compared to a
profit of approximately RM13.4 million in FY2016. This was attributable
mainly to the non-recurring Listing expenses of approximately RM13.2
million incurred during FY2017.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

S&P Group intends to grow and expand in tandem with the growing
coconut related products industry. Initiatives are put in place to capitalise
on the vibrant industry outlook. Areas which the management team shall
place emphasis on, amongst others, are widening of the global distribution
network and strengthening of the Group’s product innovation and
development capabilities, and talent development and management
initiatives to ensure sustainable growth of the Group.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintained a solid financial position and was in a net cash
position as at 31 December 2017. The Group was able to meet its
obligations when they became due in its ordinary and usual course of
business.

Capital Structure

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong
capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. Total equity of the Group as
at 31 December 2017 was approximately RM115.7 milion (FY2016:
RM53.4 million).

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management
during the FY2017.

Cash Position

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately RM59.4 million as compared with approximately RM10.1
million as at 31 December 2016. The increase of approximately RM49.3
million in cash was mainly from unutilised net proceeds from the IPO
exercise.

Loans and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, the loans and borrowings amounted to
approximately RM4.8 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RM2.3 million as compared to approximately RM7.1 million as at 31
December 2016, attributable primarily to net repayments of bank
borrowings during FY2017. Details of borrowings were set out in Note 20
to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this report.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio equals to total debt divided by total equity. As at 31
December 2017, the debt gearing ratio was approximately 0.04 as
compared to approximately 0.13 as at 31 December 2016.

RBEE MBEERRER
X

AEBER -_ZT—tHF+T A=+ —"BHEHR
f2 B B R B 3 BR 7R IR 2 AR o RE B BE
ARE-—MEAERBBRETEEHI S
BiITEAE

BEARRRE
AEBREEEABENERREREENE
AEREREAEEFELEEBNE
NERREE BRARTEHEDL  UERE
REBHNARBEZER R_FT—LF+=
A=Z+—B AEENESAE/NI567E
EEXRAGTSTH (T RFMHRFE 534
BESKAESH)-

R-E—tFUWBEFE AKENELERE
AL EEE) -

BEMRR

R-E—+HE+-A=+—H KEBHR
ERBEEEBYWHANIGEFTRALS
HE MmMZE-RNFE+-A=+—HBAHAE
101EESERARS T - BB M4938
EERATSEEIZRBEAAHAEENR
B AT RIBFE -

EERERK
R-B—LE+-A=+—80 HERER
MARIBEBBFAABLSE BT XF+

ZA=+—BONTIEESRKATSER
LH23BEBFRATSEH  TERFAR-T
—tEFEMRFENRITETFER - BFH
BENAREHREMBHRERME20-

SfEkE=R

EELNERSEREERERAERSAE - N =
T—+FE+-_A=t+—H BEBAGBLXRY
B004 MR —ZFE—X"F+=-A=+—HEI
#47/50.13°



S&P International Holding Limited 46 Annual Report 2017

Management Discussion and Analysis continued)

BEEN®R DM

PLEDGE OF ASSETS EEEH
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the assets pledged to R =& — t¢+ A=+—HBR_-Z—KE
licensed banks for banking facilities granted to the Group were as follows: +ZA=+—H8 MAEEEENEFETRE

M 5 ?%ﬁi‘ﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁ BENMT:

2017 2016
—E—+tE —E—RF
RM RM
ERmESE BRADRST
T
Leasehold land HE i 254,642 262,945
Freehold land KAFERE T H 97,046 97,046
Factory buildings and other buildings ImEFREMET 11,344,831 11,791,483
11,696,519 12,151,474
I

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES - NE T

During FY2017, the Group had incurred capital expenditures of
approximately RM5.2 million as compared to approximately RM1.6 million
in FY2016. The expenditures were mainly related to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016.

MATERIALS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The Group had no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during FY2017 and FY2016.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly in USD and HK$, and hence exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations arises. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely in order to keep the net exposure to an acceptable level.
The Group will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

FINAL DIVIDEND

At the meeting of the Board held on 28 March 2018, the Board has
resolved not to declare any dividend to the shareholders of the Company
for FY2017.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) will be held at
10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, 30 May 2018 at Seminar Room 03D, The
Executive Centre, Level 3, Three Pacific Place, Admiralty, Hong Kong and
the notice of the AGM will be published and despatched in accordance
with the requirements under the Company’s articles of association and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ rights to attend and vote
at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 25 May 2018 to Wednesday, 30 May 2018, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, non-registered Shareholders must
lodge all completed transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 24 May 2018.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 238 employees and 247 employees as at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016 respectively. Remuneration is determined by
reference to prevailing market terms and in accordance with the
performance, qualification and experience of each individual employee.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) with effect from 11 July 2017 to enable the Board to grant share
options to eligible participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company with a view to achieve the following objectives: (i) motivate
the eligible participants to optimise their performance efficiency for the
benefit of the Group; and (i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an
ongoing business relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

As at the date of this report, there was no outstanding share option granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its shareholders
(the “Shareholders”) and protecting and enhancing Shareholders’ value
through good corporate governance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) recognise the importance
of incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures, internal control and risk management procedures
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) so as to achieve effective
accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

As the Company’s ordinary shares (the “Shares”) in issue were initially
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 11 July 2017 (the “Listing Date”), the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) was not applicable to the Company for the period from 1 January
2017 to 10 July 2017, being the period before the Listing Date. The
Company has adopted and complied with all applicable code provisions as
set out in the CG Code during the period from the Listing Date to 31
December 2017 (the “Period”).

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct governing the securities
transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry made by the
Company on each of the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
had complied with the Model Code during the Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for overseeing
and supervising the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and
standards and ensures that the requisite financial and human resources
support is in place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions
performed by the Board include but are not limited to formulating the
Group’s business plans and strategies, deciding all significant financial
(including major capital expenditure) and operational issues, developing,
monitoring and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance practices and
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all other functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”). The Board has established
Board committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference. The
responsibilities of these Board committees include monitoring the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensuring that appropriate
internal control and risk management are in place. The Board may from
time to time delegate certain functions to management of the Group if and
when considered appropriate. The management is mainly responsible for
the execution of the business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the
Board and assigned to it from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and the
management has an obligation to supply the Directors with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to perform their
responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to holding the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”) so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
seven Directors, of which the INEDs in aggregate represent more than one-
third of the Board members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Koon Fook (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Sieng Poon (Managing Director)
Mr. Yap Boon Teong

Ms. Wong Yuen Lee

INEDs

Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong
Mr. Ng Hock Boon

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” of this annual report.

There was no financial,
among the Directors.

business, family or other material relationship
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The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experience and independent judgement to the Board. Through active
participation in the Board meetings and serving on various Board
committees, all INEDs will continue to make various contributions to the
Company.

Throughout the Period, the Company had three INEDs, which was in
compliance with the requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of
INEDs must represent at least one-third of the Board members, and that at
least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence in
writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Based on such confirmation, the Company considers that all the INEDs are
independent and have met the independence guidelines as set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

From the Company’s financial year commencing on 1 January 2018
through 31 December 2018 (“FY2018”), the Chairman, being an executive
Director will at least annually hold one meeting with the INEDs without the
presence of other executive Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against the Directors’
liability has been arranged by the Company.

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

Each of the Directors has received a formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business
and is fully aware of the director’s responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and
the Company’s business and governance policies. During the year ended
31 December 2017 (the “Year”), each of the Directors had attended the
training seminar arranged by the Company’s Hong Kong legal advisers on
directors’ responsibilities.

The Company will from time to time fund and arrange suitable training to all
Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to
their duties and responsibilities, such that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. All Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expense and they have been
requested to provide the Company with their training records. According to
the training records maintained by the Company, the continuing
professional development programmes received by each of the Directors
during the Year is summarised as follows:
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Name of Directors

Type of training

EEpE FHER
Mr. Tang Koon Fook Aand B
Tang Koon Fook 4t 4 AXB
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon Aand B
Lee Sieng Poon 7t 4 AKB
Mr. Yap Boon Teong Aand B
Yap Boon Teong 5t 4 AMB
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee Aand B
Wong Yuen Lee 22 = AKB
Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony Aand B
HEREE AKB
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong Aand B
Chong Yew Hoong 5t & AXB
Mr. Ng Hock Boon Aand B
Ng Hock Boon 5t & AKB

A:  attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars,
briefings, conferences, forums and workshops

B: reading materials relating to the economy, general business,
corporate governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities

Meetings of the Board and Directors’ Attendance
Records

From FY2018 onwards, regular meeting of the Board is scheduled four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with notice given to the
Directors at least 14 days in advance. For all other Board meetings, notice
will be given in a reasonable time in advance. The Directors are allowed to
include any matter in the agenda that is required for discussion and
resolution at the meeting. To enable the Directors to be properly briefed on
issues arising at each of the Board meetings and to make informed
decisions, an agenda and the accompanying Board papers will be sent to
all Directors at least three days before the intended date of the Board
meeting, or such other period as agreed. The company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) is responsible for keeping all Board
meetings’ minutes. Draft and final versions of the minutes will be circulated
to the Directors for comments and record respectively within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for the Directors’
inspection.

During the Period, the Board held 3 meetings on 29 August 2017, 15
November 2017 and 25 November 2017, and amongst other matters,
approved the unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2017.
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The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings during the Period is
as follows:

Name of Directors

ERHREmw

RAHRE SEFNEFTSERLFLHN
T

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

HERE
E=pnE BRRY
Mr. Tang Koon Fook 3/3
Tang Koon Fook 4t 4
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon 3/3
Lee Sieng Poon 4t 4
Mr. Yap Boon Teong 3/3
Yap Boon Teong 5t A&
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee 3/3
Wong Yuen Lee Z £+
Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony 3/3
HEREE
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong 3/3
Chong Yew Hoong 7t 4
Mr. Ng Hock Boon 3/3
Ng Hock Boon 4t 4

During the Period, the Company did not hold any shareholders’ general
meeting.

The Board held a meeting on 28 March 2018 and, amongst other matters,
considered and approved the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Year.

Board Diversity Policy

During the Year, the Board has adopted a policy of the Board’s diversity
and discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the same.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

During the Period, Mr. Tang Koon Fook was the Chairman whilst Mr. Lee
Sieng Poon was the Managing Director and they will continue to act in such
capacities in 2018. Therefore, the Company has complied with code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The Chairman has been responsible for the overall management, strategic
planning and the day-to-day business operation and financial management
of the Group. The Managing Director has been responsible for the overall
management, R&D, the day-to-day management of the sales and
marketing, maintenance of customer and supplier relationship of the Group
and overseeing the Sanctions Oversight Committee.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Sanctions Oversight Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 8 June 2017 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. It comprises all the three INEDs,
namely Mr. Chong Yew Hoong, Mr. Ng Hock Boon and Mr. Fung Che Wai,
Anthony who is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include but are not
limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors, and approving their
remuneration and terms of engagement, and handling any questions
regarding their resignation or dismissal;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards and discussing with the external auditors
on the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before
the audit commences;
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° developing and implementing a policy on engaging external auditors
to supply non-audit services and reporting to the Board, identifying
and making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

° monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts and half-year report, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

° reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, and risk
management and internal control systems;

° discussing the risk management and internal control systems with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty
to have such effective systems;

° considering major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

° where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing
within the Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

° reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditors to management about the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
response;

° ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letters; and

° considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During the Period, two Audit Committee meetings were held on 28 August
2017 and 15 November 2017; and, amongst other matters, considered
and approved () the draft unaudited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017 for presentation to the
Board for its consideration and approval and (i) audit-related matters.

ERHREmw

o BREETEHNEE 4R BT IR 44 3 X MR 75
B AT AT AR BB IR
BATBSRENEENEEE RS - 1
SR

s EERARANUBRRLFERELR
REARFFERENTENE  AEH
H AP P Y B 0K B % B R B

o FHARAMMBEMEE RARERE
KA EREAE R AL

e HEBENWEREELABEZRR
BoHMREEECETBREEZIARN
B

e IPXEEFEMNZR G RAMARE
BEFARBRERZTENEZFHEERNK
EEEHRHEERNEEETHR:

. mERBERNE RRABHNEE
B8 0 15 (9 515 38 - A REAR P9 DB A
WEERD T NG WEREE - &
B % B+ bR B R B B AR
9

©  BREAEEONHREHHEREY

e RENERBMETEEEMNER
BRFHA M) SN BB B & 5T A2
B MBRASEEVNEREEERK
MERERER LR EEEELMDRE:

o MEREEC NLEOENINEREAS
TEEBN(EZBIRGRERKEF) PR
MNEE: &

e MRHEMBHEZTSRENRE -

RAHE BAZ80R_ZE—tFN
AZ+N\BEZZE—tF+—A+HAHET
MAEH W(EheB) EakibE)nE
EeREMAERAEE UEZ LI ELAEE
HE-_Z—+tEXNA=THILAEANEREK
ERGAVWERERERELNEZBEEER -



56

S&P International Holding Limited

Annual Report 2017

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

o =D

The attendance of each INED at the Audit Committee meetings during the
Period is as follows:

Name of Directors

ERHREmw

EBUFVTEFTRAARALFERIZES
EZWBERET

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

HERE
EEuE BRRH
Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony 2/2
BEREEE
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong 2/2
Chong Yew Hoong 5t &
Mr. Ng Hock Boon 2/2
Ng Hock Boon 5& 4

The Audit Committee held a meeting on 28 March 2018 and, amongst
other matters, considered and approved for presentation to the Board for
consideration and approval the draft audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year. The chairman and the members of
the Audit Committee attended such meetings.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 8 June 2017 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration
Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Chong Yew Hoong and Mr.
Ng Hock Boon and Mr. Tang Koon Fook, an executive Director. Mr. Chong
Yew Hoong is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policy;

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

° either: (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management;
or (i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment;
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° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
non-executive Directors;

° considering the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group;

° reviewing and approving the compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office
or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with the contractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

° reviewing and approving the compensation arrangements relating to
the dismissal or removal of the Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with the contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

° ensuring that no Director or any of his associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the Period, no Remuneration Committee meeting was held.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 28 March 2018, and
among other things, reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors and
senior management. The chairman and the members of the Remuneration
attended such meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 8 June 2017 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. It comprises two
INEDs, namely Mr. Chong Yew Hoong and Mr. Ng Hock Boon, and Mr.
Tang Koon Fook, an executive Director. Mr. Tang Koon Fook is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include but
are not limited to:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
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° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° assessing the independence of the INEDs; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and the succession planning for the
Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the chief executive.

During the Period, no Nomination Committee meeting was held.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting on 28 March 2018 and among
other things, reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessed the independence of the INEDs and recommended to the Board
for consideration the re-appointment of the retiring Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”). The
chairman and the members of the Nomination Committee attended such
meeting.

Sanctions Oversight Committee

The Sanctions Oversight Committee was established on 28 February 2017.
The current members of the Sanctions Oversight Committee are Mr. Lee
Sieng Poon and Ms. Wong Yuen Lee, both executive Directors. Mr. Lee
Sieng Poon is the chairman of the Sanctions Oversight Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Sanctions Oversight Committee
include but are not limited to:

° evaluating the sanctions risks prior to determining whether the Group
should embark on any business opportunities in the Sanctioned
Countries (as defined below) and with Sanctioned Persons (as defined
below);

Remarks:

(@) “Sanctioned Countries” means countries regarding which
governments such as the United States or Australia, or
governmental organisations, such as the European Union or the
United Nations, have, through executive order, passing of
legislation or other governmental means, implemented
measures that impose economic sanctions against such
countries or against targeted industry sectors, groups of
companies or persons, and/or organisations within such
countries.
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(b) “Sanctioned Persons” means certain person(s) and identity(ies)
listed on Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons
List of the United States Department of Treasury’s Office of
Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) or other restricted parties lists
maintained by the United States of America, European Union,
the United Nations or Australia.

° review and approve all relevant business transaction documentation
from customers or potential customers from Sanctioned Countries
and with Sanctioned Persons. In particular, to review the information
(such as the identity and nature of business as well as its ownership)
relating to the counterparty to the contract along with the draft
business transaction documentation;

° checking the counterparty against the various lists of restricted parties
and countries maintained by the United States, the European Union,
the United Nations or Australia, including, without limitation, any
government, individual or entity that is the subject of any OFAC-
administered sanctions which lists are publicly available, and
determine whether the counterparty is, or is owned or controlled by,
a person located in Sanctioned Countries or a Sanctioned Person;
and

° periodically review the Company’s internal control policies and
procedures with respect to sanctions matters, including but not
limited to the global sanctions policy of the Board.

During the Period, one Sanctions Oversight Committee meeting was held
on 15 November 2017; and, the Sanctions Oversight Committee had
undertaken review on, amongst other matters, () the list of Sanctioned
Countries and Sanctioned Persons against the list of customers and
potential customers of the Group; (i) the global sanctions policy adopted by
the Company; and (i) the current procedures put in place to detect and
avoid doing business with customers or potential customers from
Sanctioned Countries and with Sanctioned Persons.
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The attendance of the Sanctions Oversight Committee meeting during the RAHIEH EHIREBZESSZ N BE RN

Period is as follows: o

No. of Attendance/
Name of Sanctions Oversight Committee Member No. of Meetings

s Ve

HBEEZEESENERSE EE DN
Mr. Lee Sieng Poon 11
Lee Sieng Poon %t 4
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee 11
Wong Yuen Lee ZZ &=
Corporate Governance Functions X E R EE
The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate ZE:tZEeB&ERITLEE ST TIEX
governance function as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, EDI1IEHAEFE N LEES AR HbheiEa
which include but are not limited to: TR :

Bl

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on e TR B ARARDNRICEEARHER
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board; B omESeREES

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional e BT NEREENSNETEAENE
development of the Directors and senior management; IIREEEERRE

il

o reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on e B MERKARGRETEREN
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; ERMBEER N R

B

] developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and e HE B MERES &%%E’J 1R SF A
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; A EERFMNE)
and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and e BEARAATETOEZTATIBNER

disclosure in this report. RERNGENH I E
APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF ZERERES
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with  E#H{TE S H AN T IR HE 8
the Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date, ™ HEIE A =F A —HA B —FH &
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice served by Z= R DR ={F A BE F ALK

either party on the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the BIF I IEMITESELHAR RGN ST XK
Company for a period of three years commencing on the Listing Date, BrFthmHEHSEstAS=F  a—FARRE—
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice served by  HixZERN DR = A B FLAKF

either party on the other.
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None of the Directors has a service agreement or letter of appointment with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries other than the agreements/letters of
appointment expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of Shareholders after his appointment and
shall be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation and
will be eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association.
At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires. The Directors to retire
by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number of
Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and does
not offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be
those who have been the longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment and so that as between the persons who became or were last
re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in Note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for the Year by
band is set out below:

ERHREmw

BMEBEEECHARAXNEEMAME QAL
EAREHEREZLR(TEER —FRE
MREBEBEEIN -FARKLEMBAXINEE
CEERERIN ORE/ZEK) -

THEEFEZTNAMBREZRNEST
HKEZHEZEREERRARG /L I
RzARg LtEREE MEMNEEESERE
NEMREEESABNESEHEETRE
BRREFRGERIE BRETaERERE
e

]

EREF(ERBUFNTES) AKEA
BERMABERENTEEREREE-
REERRBEFASL ER=Dpz—EF
(MEBAF=2EE ABZEOLZE ET
BINR=ZDz )BBERET KIEFA
ROB_FRBRRBFRERET K- RE
EEBTaEREREET UNARENE
BAASRTHEDNETSFNTE WEER
THEFERGIERBERINEST AR
mE)ERMBEEAETREEREENES -
THEMBEETNESEARE ERBEEREN
RENERBEFHEENES @it XA
—HRARBEEREETNHALZMA  AHE
REBBREEFANE  ZFESZHRTTIE
HORTE BB SLBR I

EEREREEETM

KEFEENHFMAFBENEGS M B HRKMH
100

REBEEEERTATAIRXEBASEK K
BEAB(BEFHRN)FTM(RERIZAERNH
RAFEFRIEFTNGREEEREFE
—ER)EIAT

Number of
Remuneration band (in RM) individuals
FMARN(BSREDRSH AE
Nil to 1,000,000 2

Z £1,000,000




62

S&P International Holding Limited

Annual Report 2017

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, KPMG PLT was engaged as the Group’s independent
auditor. JWMG CPA Limited was engaged as the independent auditor for
S&P (Hong Kong) Holding Limited. Apart from the provision of annual audit
services, KPMG PLT and its foreign member firm provided the audit and
non-audit services in connection with the listing of the issued Shares on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing”).

The remuneration paid/payable to the independent auditors and its foreign
member firm in respect of the Year is set out below:
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BYZBEHE

RAFE  KPMGPLTERE AR SERN B LZ
YR cRERSHMELEMBER QKR
/5 S8&P (Hong Kong) Holding Limited #) 8 37 # &
B o BRIBEHFEZ BRI - KPMG PLT R &
BINKB BB B BITRONB T £
m(Em) R EZEEIFZERS -

KE BN, B S B R S SR B
F B H AT -

Fee paid/

Services payable RM
BN ENER

R EXAESH
Audit services — Annual audit BERB—FEEZ 215,863
Non-audit services — Listing EZE R — L™ 2,092,949
Total BET 2,308,812

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

In addition, KPMG PLT has stated in the independent auditor’s report its
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks the Company is wiling to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. The Board oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Board acknowledges that such risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Company has reviewed the need for an internal audit function since the
Listing Date. Internal audit function of the Company has been carried out
under the leadership of the Board and the Audit Committee.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance as well as risk management. The Board considers that the
Group’s risk management and internal control are adequate and effective.
The Board expects that a review of the risk management and internal
control systems will be performed annually.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the Listing
Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should be
announced promptly. The procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair disclosure
by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to the
public through channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and the Company’s website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and
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° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that
only the executive Directors, the Company Secretary and the financial
controller of the Company are authorised to communicate with parties
outside the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring that reliable and
relevant flow of information is maintained amongst members of the Board
and that all procedures have been adhered to in accordance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Ms. Jane Ong Bee Yen (“Ms. Ong”), the then finance manager of the
Company, was appointed a joint company secretary of the Company (the
“Joint Company Secretary”) on 22 March, 2017. Mr. Kwok Siu Man (“Mr.
Kwok”) was appointed as another Joint Company Secretary on the same
date.

Mr. Kwok was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Service (HK) Limited
(“Boardroom”) to be one of the Joint Company Secretaries pursuant to an
engagement letter entered into between the Company and Boardroom,
with a view to providing support to Ms. Ong in her role as a Joint Company
Secretary. Ms. Ong resigned as a Joint Company Secretary with effect from
30 November 2017 and upon Ms. Ong’s above resignation, Mr. Kwok has
remained as the sole company secretary of the Company. The primary
person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting in
respect of company secretarial matters is the Group Financial Controller,
Ms. Yap Siew Wei.

Mr. Kwok delivered and attended over 15 hours’ relevant continuous
professional development training during the Year pursuant to rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals or move
resolutions at the AGMs under the memorandum of association of the
Company and the Articles of Association (the “M&A”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a
resolution may, however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the
“EGM”) in accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene
an EGM” set out below.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

According to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to require an EGM to be called
by the Board or the Company Secretary for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, including making proposals or moving a
resolution at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose of
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a written
requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned (the “Requisitionist(s)”) at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong (presently Room 31/F., 148 Electric Road, North
Point, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to
convene an EGM and the proposed agenda.

Following receipt of the Requisition, the identity and shareholding of the
Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong. If the Requisition is found to be proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM and/or
include the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the
Requisitionist(s) at the EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the
Requisition. On the contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in
order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of the outcome
and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM nor include the
proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Requisitionist(s) at
the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to
the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them by post to the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong (presently at 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong
Kong) or by email to info@spfood.com, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Company Secretary will forward the
communications relating to:

1. the matters within the Board’s purview to the executive Directors;

2. the matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the
chairman of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries and client
complaints to the appropriate management of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy with the
objective of ensuring that the Shareholders will have equal and timely
access to information about the Company in order to enable the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow them
to engage actively with the Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports, AGMs and other EGMs that may be convened
as well as all the published disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Except for the adoption of amended and restated M&A by the Company to
comply with the applicable legal and regulatory requirements (including the
Listing Rules) on 8 June 2017 for the purposes of the Listing, which took
effect from the Listing Date, there were no changes in the constitutional
documents of the Company during the Year.

The M&A is available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of S&P International
Holding Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
is pleased to present to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) their report for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Year” or “FY2017”) and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the Year (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 14 to the Financial
Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business of the Group for the Year are set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
41 to 48 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year and the Group’s financial position as
at 31 December 2017 are set out in the Financial Statements on pages 97
to 168 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the Year.

There is no arrangement that a Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive
any dividend.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ rights to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held at
10:00 a.m. on 30 May 2018, Wednesday at Seminar Room 03D, The
Executive Centre, Level 3, Three Pacific Place, Admiralty, Hong Kong, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 25 May
2018 to Wednesday, 30 May 2018, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company (“Shares”) will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, non-registered
Shareholders must lodge all completed transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
24 May 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group in the form of a comparative table for the last four financial years is
set out on page 2 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Climate change could influence food security and food supply chain in
varying extent. Along the food supply chain, energy, water and other
resources are consumed at every step to transport, prepare and package.
In light of this, the Group has taken initiatives that facilitate adherence of our
operations on the environment to relevant laws and regulations such as
Environmental Quality (Industrial Effluent) Regulations 2009 in Malaysia.
Additionally, evolving regulatory requirements and escalating stakeholders’
expectations on environmental issues serve as the impetus for establishing
a systematic and quantitative approach to manage the resources
consumed and environmental emissions.

The Group has also dedicated its effort to review and monitor the Group’s
environmental, social and governance (‘ESG”) policies and practices to
ensure compliance with the relevant legal and regulatory requirements as
described in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”
and the “Listing Rules”, respectively).
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In addition, the Group is also committed to engage with its key stakeholders
and operate its business in a fair, responsible and transparent manner.

Details of the Group’s ESG performance for the Year can be found in
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set out on pages 17 to
40 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has in place compliance and risk management policies and
procedures, and members of the senior management are delegated with
the continuing obligation to monitor adherence to and compliance with all
significant legal and regulatory requirements by the Group. As far as the
Company is aware, the Group has complied in all material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial condition, results of
operation, businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of risks
and uncertainties. The key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group
are set out as follows:

() Price fluctuation in and shortage of raw
materials and perishability of coconuts may
materially and adversely affect business
operations

The coconut-related food manufacturing industry depends on a
sufficient supply of major raw materials, namely coconuts and white
kernels, at commercially reasonably prices. If our suppliers for any
particular raw material are unable or unwilling to meet our
requirements, we could suffer shortages or significant cost increases.
In addition, any shortage or disruption in our supply of coconuts and
other raw materials could affect our performance and our ability to
satisfy the purchase orders of our customers, which may adversely
affect our profitability, results of operations and financial condition.
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Coconut is a perishable raw material which may deteriorate due to
delivery delays, or poor handling during transportation by suppliers or
logistic partners. This may result in failures to operate production of
coconut products, thereby damaging our business and/or reputation.
If any raw materials or finished products are alleged or found to be
spoiled, contaminated, tampered with, incorrectly labelled, unsafe or
otherwise associated with food safety incidents, we could be subject
to product liability claims, adverse publicity and regulatory
investigation, intervention or penalties, product returns, any of which
may result in decreased profitability as well as damage to our brands
and reputation.

Our industry is subject to changes in legislative
requirements and laws, national health and
safety standards in Malaysia and the respective
jurisdictions where our products are sold

The coconut-related food manufacturing industry in Malaysia is
subject to the local food safety laws and regulations. Please refer to
“Regulatory overview” of the prospectus of the Company dated 29
June 2017 (the “Prospectus”) for further details of the relevant food
safety laws and regulations. Failure to meet the government
requirements or any instance of contamination could occur in our
operations or those of distributors or suppliers. This could result in
fines, suspension of operations, loss of production permits, and in
more extreme cases, criminal proceedings against our Group and our
management. Moreover, negative publicity could be generated from
false, unfounded or normal liability claims or limited recalls. Any of
those failures or occurrences could negatively affect our business and
financial performance. The Group is also subject to stringent
legislative requirements and relevant laws in the jurisdictions where
our products are being sold. Any changes in the foreign government’s
policies and measures that are unfavourable to the industry may have
an adverse effect on our production process and also our sales and
profitability.
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(iii) Risks of foreign currency fluctuations

We conduct all our operations in Malaysia and our functional currency
is Ringgit Malaysia (“‘RM”). The sales to our customers abroad are
mainly billed and settled in United States dollars (“‘US$”), and sales to
our customers located in Malaysia are billed and settled in RM. We
source most of our packaging and raw materials locally which are
paid in RM, whereas our coconut milk products and some of our
packaging and raw materials are sourced overseas and paid in US$ (or
other foreign currencies). There can be no assurance that the
exchange rate of RM will remain stable against US$ (or any other
foreign currencies) in the future. Any significant movement of
exchange rates of foreign currencies against RM may significantly
affect our financial condition and results of operations. In addition,
foreign exchange rate fluctuations in the currencies mentioned above
may result in foreign exchange losses and hence, may have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

For other risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, please refer to
the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING AND
CHANGE IN USE OF PROCEEDS

On 11 July 2017 (the “Listing Date”), the Company completed its initial
public offer (the “IPQ”) by way of a global offering of 270,000,000 Shares at
an issue price of HK$0.48 each and the Shares commenced trading on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the same day
(the “Listing”).

The net proceeds received by the Company from the IPO after deducting
the relevant one-off and non-recurring Listing expenses amounted to
approximately HK$90.4 million (equivalent to approximately RM46.8 million
based on Bank Negara Malaysia’s mid-rate as at 29 December 2017 (being
the last trading day of 2017) of HK$1.00:RM0.51795)) (“Year End HK$:RM
Rate”) (the “Net Proceeds”).

(Continued)
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The Group is in the process of implementing its business strategies as set
out in the Prospectus of the Company and has utilised approximately
RMO0.8 million of the Net Proceeds as at 31 December 2017 based on the
proposed applications under the section headed “Future Plans and Use of

Report of the Directors (continueq)
EEE®REF@®

AEBEEEBRARRBRERMBNER
KE ARZZE—+tF+ZA=+—HER
BRBRERI KRR S R
MEZREHAYOSHEESRALTSTH

78 =

BRERE] &

Proceeds” of the Prospectus. The following sets forth a summary of the FFEFEFEE FXHIR —_E—+F+=
BREFHENSERAESAM

allocation of the Net Proceeds and its utilisation as at 31 December 2017,
the Group’s current plan as to the remaining utilisation and reasons for the
changes to their manner of utilisation as compared to that envisaged in the

Prospectus.

A=+—8Fm
£ RSB B /A BER R FRIENE) A ET &I
NERBRERAEHTEREMALE AT A

Approximate
actual amount

Unused amount
of Net Proceeds

Approximate Approximate utilized as at as at
amount of Net  percentage of 31 December 31 December
Use of Proceeds BRERAR Proceeds  Net Proceeds 2017 2017
RZB—tF RZE-—+tF
fi8®%E +t-A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
i8R IBFE FEMA BEBRBAMAY  FSREFE
MY S5 Bat o] ABRAEHE
(RM’million) (%) (RM’million) (RM’million)
(B8 (BB (B8
BARAED BRAER BARAED
2F) (%) 2F) 2F)
Expanding and upgrading the BREEFHERELR

production facilities at the Perak B ERRIE

Plant 35.6 76.0% ©.1) 355
Recommissioning of the Johor Plant % T (& 5 TX)

(as defined below) g E 4.7 10.0% 0 47
Advertising and promotion expenses & & & # & 5 % 1.2 2.5% 0 1.2
Investing in new equipment to BREFZE URA

enhance the research and fift 2% g

development 1.2 2.5% 0 1.2
General corporate purposes and —RARHERREE

working capital & 4.1 9.0% 0.7) 3.4
Total 46.8 100.0% 0.8) 46.0

The above Net Proceeds in RM were arrived at after taking into account the Year End
HK$:RM Rate. Should there be any further movement in the foreign exchange rate until
the actual utilisation of the Net Proceeds, any upward or downward differences will be

BE & R

78 £

1F K

FPHMASRAESEHENMERBEFEINE
BERELTABRATSHERRSH - HHNE
HFRERGAAIE LR AR

taken into “General corporate purposes and working capital”. g AMFERETESHEEEFA—BAGAER
BERE]-
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The planned expansion and upgrade of the Group’s production
facilities at the Perak Plant was originally expected to be completed in
second quarter of 2018. Subsequent to the Listing, the Group has
come across an opportunity to purchase two parcels of land adjacent
to the Perak Plant from an independent third party, and decided to
use its internally generated funds to pursue on the acquisition which
was completed in the fourth quarter of 2017. The Directors take the
view that after assessing and considering the long term development,
business expansions and commercial factors, the Group will be better
off to site certain facilities on these purchased lands than the originally
leased land in order to accommodate the planned expansion and
upgrade of Perak Plant in the future.

In accordance with the Uniform Building By-Laws, 1984 of Malaysia,
the Group is required to submit an application to the relevant authority
in Malaysia, Majlis Perbandaran Teluk Intan, Perak (Teluk Intan
Municipal Council) for (i) planning approval and (i) approval of the
building plans prior to the commencement of construction. The
Group has obtained planning approval on 16 March 2018 and is in
the midst of obtaining the approval for the building plans before
construction works for the said expansion and upgrade commences.
Our Directors expect to obtain the approval for building plans by the
second quarter of 2018, and now expect that the allocated portion of
the Net Proceeds for the Perak Plant expansion and upgrade project
to be utilised by the second quarter of 2019.

The recommissioning of the Group’s second production facility
located at Parit Raja, Johor, Malaysia (the “Johor Plant”) was
originally expected to be completed in the third quarter of 2018, and
one of the uses of the Net Proceeds earmarked for this purpose was
for purchasing and installing a biomass boiler thereat. With the
expected availability of natural gas (a cleaner and more efficient
alternative fuel to biomass) at the Johor Plant in the near future, the
installation of the biomass boiler will no longer be required. In view of
this, the utilisation of proceeds allocated for the biomass boiler will be
applied to the other two planned uses under this head, namely for
building a waste water treatment plant and installation of coconut milk
extraction equipment and other equipment and building structures
required for recommissioning the Johor Plant. The Directors now
expect that the Net Proceeds allocated for refurbishing the Johor
Plant will be fully utilised by the second quarter of 2019.
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@iy ~ The Group has planned to undertake appropriate advertising and
promotion activities to be timed in line with the commencement of the
production of coconut milk and coconut water from the Perak Plant.
Further, the Group will also acquire appropriate equipment for
research and development and product testing purposes. The
Directors now expect the allocated Net IPO Proceeds for these
purposes to be fully utilised by third quarter of 2018.

The Directors have considered the impact of the above changes to the use
and the date of use of the Net Proceeds, and are of the view that the
changes are in the best interests of the Group to meet its future business
operations and financial requirements. The Group remains resolute to
execute the future expansion plans of the Company as set out in the ‘Use
of Proceeds’ section in the Prospectus and above albeit with delay due to
unforeseen developments.

As at 31 December 2017, the unutilised Net IPO Proceeds were deposited
as short-term deposits with a licensed bank in Hong Kong.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set out
in Note 19 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 100 of this annual
report and the details of reserves attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company are set out in Note 19 to the Financial Statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, was approximately RM43.0 million.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 56.4% of
the total revenue of the Group for the Year whilst the largest customer
accounted for approximately 32.3% of the total revenue of the Group for
the Year.
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The Group’s five largest coconut suppliers accounted for approximately
56.7% of the Group’s total purchases during the Year whilst the largest
coconut supplier accounted for approximately 29.6% of the total coconut
purchases of the Group for the Year.

At all times during the Year, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any Shareholder (who, to the
best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of number of issued
Shares) had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or five largest
customers of the Group for the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who served for FY2017 and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Koon Fook (“Mr. Tang”) (chairman)

Mr. Lee Sieng Poon (“Mr. Lee”) (managing director)

Mr. Yap Boon Teong(“Mr. Yap”)
Ms. Wong Yuen Lee (“Ms. Wong”)

Notes:

1. Mr. Tang and Mr. Lee were appointed as Directors on 10 November 2016 (date of
incorporation of the Company) and were re-designated as executive Directors on 22
March 2017.

2. Mr. Yap and Ms. Wong were appointed as executive Directors on 22 March 2017.

Independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Mr. Fung Che Wai, Anthony (“Mr. Fung”)
Mr. Chong Yew Hoong (“Mr. Chong”)
Mr. Ng Hock Boon (“Mr. Ng”)

Note: All appointed as INEDs on 8 June 2017.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the following AGM
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
AGM at least once every three years.

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles, all the Directors, namely Mr.
Tang, Mr. Lee, Mr. Yap, Ms. Wong, Mr. Fung, Mr. Chong and Mr. Ng wiill
retire from office as Directors at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 11 to 16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on the Listing Date, which
may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles.

None of the Directors has a service contract or letter of appointment with
the Company, which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group during the Year are
set out on pages 166 to 167 of this annual report.
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Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the end of the
Year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any
contracts of any significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries subsisted at any time during the Year or as at the end
of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)), which were required: (a) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

B EXATHREEI  BHEA QR A AR A
BARRAKREEBMAIUMETHEES
FHNERERAMEZAEARENEM
R ZHREBEARHONAFEAR T EME
HARFERIDABR -

ERBRRNERS

BRAREMBEEEIN  SEARB S EEM
MEBAREARAN -—REERBRR(EER
EARADFEEAMBRRZEATLNE
RE K - IR i 7R 2 A) 728 BA 3R s B AE (] B
J& A B A AR A SE AT A MY B A R R R
MEMEESORANEERTMERERAF
ERIDARB R

R-E—tF+-_A=+—B EFRAR
BAXTETBRABRAREREBEEEGE
ERBEBEVESNERF LBE G (R
ZRBE®KRA ) FXVE) BB - BB D
REEETHER  @REZHFRHPEHRIE
XVERSET7 K8 BB /A K & AN R 7] o Bt 2 At 1Y
RO RR (BRERBEESRAEKRIERE
BFEXHEEFEXRRBEAENEZ AR )
R I% 3 5 N H & 15 B 55 352 16 78 D #% £ 7% 1§
& e MmgEsdoRa: HO)RE LR



S&P International Holding Limited

78 Annual Report 2017

Report of the Directors (continueq)

BEEERFe@

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of — BIMf4F 1078 F BT AE B HITHEETH
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing E’] EETR(ZEESFEDETE
Rules, were as follows:

(i)

(i)

Long position in the Shares

SRR AR T -
(i) AR 2HE

ARG ARRA

Percentage of

Number of shareholding
Shares interest in the
Name of Directors Note  Capacity/Nature of interest interested Company
EEREEN iR e NN
EENE frat BB HERME g =] REBDL
Mr. Tang 1 Interest in a controlled corporation 567,000,000 52.5%
Tang %t 4+ SEE
Mr. Lee 2 Interest in a controlled corporation 243,000,000 22.5%
Leest 4 XIE A E
Notes: Bt e
1. Mr. Tang, the chairman of the Board and an executive Director, beneficially owned 1. Tang%e 4 EEGERBRNATES  Eak
100% of the issued share capital of TYJ Holding Limited (“TYJ”) and he was A TYJ Holding Limited ([TYJ]) & & & 2 17 Hx
deemed to be interested in 567,000,000 Shares held by TYJ by virtue of the SFO. Ko BIBEFHFRBEEM - HE®RABRTY
FIT$5 567,000,000 % J 17 o # 5 1 &5 o
2. Mr. Lee, the managing Director and an executive Director, beneficially owned 2. leesftE  EFHREERITES Eal
100% of the issued share capital of Trinity Holding Limited (“Trinity”) and he was 78 Trinity Holding Limited ([ Trinity ) 2 &8 & %‘
deemed to be interested in 243,000,000 Shares held by Trinity. 1T B AR o 1% #% 48 & B2 Trinity T 5 243,000,000
ARAZ D A % -
3. The percentages of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table 3. FTRERNAQRABREE DL IR -F —

above are calculated on the basis of 1,080,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31

December 2017.

BB ) o B HE o

t&F+=A=+—HH#KE %¥71,080,000,000

Long position in the shares of associated (i) REB EIEROZHE

corporation

Name of associated Capacity/

Number and class

Percentage of
shareholding

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest of share interested interest
BEREREN

EspE HEEEE8 B e BB EE RER REBDL

Mr. Tang TYJ Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share 100%

Tang %t 4 TYJ EmEAA 1% @ AR 100%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the M EXFIIREEN  RZE—+F+ =

Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/
she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
(b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or (c) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Ko B8 A5 B 28 352 1% 78 AL 8% 1E % fik AT it
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS x
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND Y #E
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) and
entities had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO:
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AfMFESRMNEDEIRE

Percentage of

Number of  shareholding
Shares interest in the
Name of Shareholders Note  Capacity/Nature of interest interested Company
EEERN L NN
R & fe a6 EEMtE KR4 E A REBDL
TYJ 1 Beneficial owner 567,000,000 52.5%
v BEnEREA
Ms. Yeow Geok Tiang (“Ms. Yeow”) 1 Interest of spouse 567,000,000 52.5%
Yeow Geok Tiang Z £
([YeowZ £ ) P 45 4 =
Trinity 2 Beneficial owner 243,000,000 22.5%
Trinity BHEBA
Ms. Goh Soo Cheng (“Ms. Goh”) 2 Interest of spouse 243,000,000 22.5%
Goh Soo ChengZ £ ([GohZ ) B 4% 4 =
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Notes:

1. TYJ was beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Tang, the husband of Ms. Yeow. By virtue
of the SFO, Ms. Yeow was deemed to be interested in the Shares held and deemed to
be held by Mr. Tang.

2. Trinity was beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Lee, the husband of Ms. Goh. By virtue
of the SFO, Ms. Goh was deemed to be interested in the Shares held and deemed to be
held by Mr. Lee.

3. The percentages of shareholding interest in the Company shown in the table above are
calculated on the basis of 1,080,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far as the Directors
or chief executive of the Company are aware, no other persons (other than
a Director or the chief executive of the Company) or entities had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would
fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23 June 2017 (the “Adoption Date”), the Shareholders approved and
conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant options to eligible participants
as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date and no options have
been granted since then. As at 31 December 2017, there were no
outstanding options and no options were exercised or lapsed from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2017.
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme:

Purpose:

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared in
accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is established to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below) had or may have made
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i)  attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

Participants:

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the
following persons (collectively the “Eligible Participants”) to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price as the Board may determine in
accordance with the rules of the Share Option Scheme:

(

) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i)  any directors (including independent non-executive directors) of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors
and such other persons who in the sole opinion of the Board
will contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Total number of Shares available for issue:

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 108,000,000
Shares, representing 10% of the total number of issued Shares as at
the Listing Date.

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme since
the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the
number of Shares available for issue upon exercise of options that
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 108,000,000
representing 10% of the total number of issued Shares as at the date
of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant:

(i) Subject to paragraph (i) below, the total number of Shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each Eligible Participant
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further
grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to:

(@ the issue of a circular by the Company containing the
identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of and
terms of the options to be granted (and the options
previously granted to such Eligible Participant), the
information as required under Rules 17.02(2)(d) and the
disclaimer required under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules;
and

(b)  the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/
or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time with such Eligible Participant and his/her
close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his/
her associates if the Eligible Participant is a connected
person (as defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from
voting.
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(i)  The maximum entitlement of each INED or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) in the 12-month period up to and including such date of
grant shall not exceed:

— inaggregate over 0.1% (or such other percentage as may
from time to time provided under the Listing Rules) of the
number of the Shares in issue; and

— an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million (or such
other sum as may from time to time provided under the
Listing Rules), where the value shall be based on the
official closing price of the Shares on the date of each
grant.

If the Board proposes to grant options to any of the persons or
entities above-mentioned, which will result in the number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person or entity in excess of
the above limit(s), such further grant of options shall be subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of
Shareholders in general meeting on a poll, at which all core
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company shall abstain from voting in favour, and/or such other
requirements as prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to
time.

Period during which the options must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date on which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10
years from that date or such shorter exercise period as the Board
may in its absolute discretion determine in relation to the grant of
such options. No option may be exercised more than 10 years after it
has been granted.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

There is no minimum period for which an option granted must be held
before it can be exercised except otherwise imposed by the Board.
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7. Amount payable on application or acceptance of
the option and the period within which payments
or calls must or may be made, or loans for such
purposes must be repaid:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$1 per grant.

8. Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price for the options that may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that such price must be at least the highest
of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

9. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
commencing on 11 July 2017 and ending on the tenth anniversary of
the Adoption Date (both days inclusive), subject to earlier termination
by the Company in general meeting or by the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective associates nor was the Company and any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Subsequent to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of
Stock Exchange on 11 July 2017, the Group did not enter into any related
party transaction that falls under the definition of connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

The Group believes that the remuneration package to its employees is in
line with local industries. It offers its employees group hospitalisation and
personal accident insurance. The Group also offers its employees an
incentive bonus scheme which encourages their individual performance
and then to contribute to their departmental performance as well.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and approved by the
remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to factors including
remuneration paid by comparable companies, time commitment, job duties
and responsibilities in respect of the relevant positions. The Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme, details of which are set out under the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report above.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals in
the Group during the Year are set out in Notes 10 and 11 to the Financial
Statements.

During the Year, there was no arrangement under which any Director had
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The issued Shares were initially listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the period
from the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2017 (the “Period”).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has not made any charitable donations in
excess of HK$10,000.

FHERXS

RARBBRNDE-_ZT—EFLA+—BRB
RAERLEMR NEELEFT LB EHAR
AIBVAAEFRENHER ZRIBTEBER
ZEMBB TS -

FHBERRESHE

AEERSHEEENFHNGFBREMLTITR
-2 -HEREERHEEBER REAZIN
Rig - AEBE TR AREBRM —REREICAE
2 BEEENEARRARSEFIXERE
AR

ExEMeHEFSHFHZE@KERAEL
RAIZEOME - 5L B BB R A B
EFEENTERERETZEAZRERENR
o - AAF D RMBRAESE  HFBH
RARE EX[EREE] -

AEBRAEENEEHERERES FHH
ALTOFBEER Y B RERMEI0R11 -

RAFER TETAEFCHREXRER
REMMESO L -

BE HEIEERG

ERTRAER EWEBRAB R E R E
e AATREAMMBATN LM AHE
E-T—tE+- A=+ —BIHE RS
M) Pt B B - I P E AR 2 A AE ]
% -

RARFEER KNEBWEEDLTHEEB
10,0008 T & Z B ©



S&P International Holding Limited

Annual Report 2017

Report of the Directors (continueq)

BEEERFe@

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of good
corporate governance in the management structures and internal control
procedures of the Company so as to achieve effective accountability. The
Company is committed to the view that the Board should include a
balanced composition of executive Directors and INEDs so that there is a
strong independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement.

The code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were not applicable to the
Company before the Listing Date.

During the Period, the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company had complied with all of the code provisions of the CG Code. For
details, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” which is set out
on pages 49 to 66 of this annual report.

The audit committee of the Board (the “Audit Committee”), consisting of
all three INEDs, namely Mr. Fung (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Chong and Mr. Ng, is responsible for reviewing the Company’s corporate
governance policies and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
will make relevant recommendations to the Board accordingly.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules was not
applicable to the Company before the Listing Date. The Company has
adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its code of conduct governing the Directors’ securities transactions and
each of the Directors has confirmed, upon specific enquiries made by the
Company, that he/she had complied with the Model Code during the
Period.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company has received from each of its INEDs a written annual
confirmation of independence, and the Company considers that each of
them is independent and has met the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Pursuant to a deed of non-competition dated 23 June 2017 and executed
by TYJ and Mr. Tang (the “Deed of Non-competition”), each of TYJ and
Mr. Tang has undertaken to the Company that it/he will not engage in, and
shall procure its/his close associates (other than members of the Group)
not to engage in, any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group. Details of the
Deed of Non-competition have been disclosed in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” of
the Prospectus.

The Company has received from TYJ and Mr. Tang an annual confirmation
that it/he has fully complied with its/his obligations under the Deed of Non-
competition. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of TYJ and Mr. Tang had complied with and
enforced the provisions of the Deed of Non-competition during the Period.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the period from the Listing
Date to the date of this report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that its employees are valuable assets for the Group’s
continuous development. Thus, it provides medical insurance coverage to
employees who are retained after the probation period. In order to promote
overall efficiency, employee loyalty and retention, employees of the Group
are required to attend orientation sessions when they first join the Group
and may attend other training courses held onsite or externally.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme to recognise and
motivate contributions of its employees. Further details regarding the Share
Option Scheme are set out in the paragraphs headed “Share Option
Scheme” on pages 80 to 84 of this annual report.

The Group provides high quality coconut related products to its customers
from both private sector and public sector to fulfil their immediate and long-
term needs. The Group also communicates with its customers regularly to
maintain close relationship with them.

The Group strives to maintain fair and cooperative relationships with its
suppliers.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

As required by the Malaysian law, the Group makes contribution to the
state pension scheme, the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”) a social
security institution formed according to the Employees Provident Fund Act
1991 which provides for the retirement benefits for all local employees.
Both the employer and employee are required to make contributions into
the employee’s individual account in the EPF at a specified percentage of
the employee’s monthly income. As at the date of this report, the Group is
in compliance with this requirement.

ZFENABRERE

REARRAHAGHNENRBEEMA
EEBRAARANLETHAMNEAREAHE
EMECER TN ARTTRE -

HES EFRHAEFANERE

AEERBEEDNAKEFBERRNEEE
E-Alt ERAHEEBBARBYNERRHES
BEREBERE REATRRBYEX RELHE

BRX AEEEEENERANMALEH
B2MARBEE LAkE2HRERI MR
W) E M35 A ARAR o

ARRERMBREAESINRTZREREEE
FHER - AREBREENE - TFRH
RAFRESOEBIEM [BRETE IS -

AEBSELERNRRAERFNTFREMH
BENBFHEBEERARRRENE LK
HIm K- A BT EE TP E BB IR
HEENEZR -

AEERNREEEREEFTOFNEER
%

RKEFETE

EB KA AEMER  AEEREREN
TRIEMEHER BEERAEEZR(EEAR
ERDR—HERERE RE(AN—F
BERBEREIMMAIL /AAXEBR
HEKEN - BXTREEHAREE ARA
MIEETEOHRAREREEABESBNMEA
BPENR - RAREEH  AEEFTEZE
sk o



MEEEERAR T FFR

Report of the Directors (continueq)
EE2H 5w

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director, independent auditor, secretary or
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may sustain or incur by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
respective offices.

The Company has taken appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
Directors’ and officers’ liability since 18 August 2017 until the end of the
Year.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract (except for the service contracts of the executive Directors)
concerning the management or administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the Year.

IMPORTANT EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
YEAR

No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee had reviewed this annual report (including the
Financial Statements) and the annual results announcement of the
Company for the Year and had submitted the same to the Board for
approval. Members of the Audit Committee were of the opinion that the
Financial Statements, the results announcement and this annual report had
been prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting standards and
the Listing Rules and that adequate disclosure had been made.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint KPMG

PLT as the external auditors of the Company until the conclusion of the
next AGM and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Tang Koon Fook
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018

(Continued)
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF S&P INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of S&P International
Holding Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, as set out on pages 97 to 168.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our auditors’ report. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,

PAgEXEE
ARERFEDRETSZBENE  HA

were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial FESGAVEHEER I EREASERE 2 F1H -

statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Valuation of inventories

FEZHE

ZEEHRINESEVERGAMBHRERLK
BRUEHABREETRIE REFIEMZ
FEHEEHEBEER -

Refer to Note 3(g) — Significant accounting policies: Inventories; Note 16 — Inventories.

F2HMESQ— EASERE T8 WE16—FE -

The key audit matter
BREXEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEEEERTNEEL X

The Group held inventories which comprises packaging and
raw materials, unpacked finished goods and finished goods
with an aggregate carrying amount of RM30,315,062 as at
the end of the reporting period.

EEENBREPRAFACEERRBEEREMH - X6
RN mMEKD BREEAM/303150602FKAE S

=
=

o

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average method. The primary raw materials is coconuts,
which is a commodity, and its cost generally affected by
markets factors, such as price fluctuations, market supply
and demand, logistics and transportation costs. The cost of
coconuts is adjusted with anticipated wastages and losses in
the production process in order to derive the inventory
standard costs. The inventory standard costs are affected by
the extraction yield from the coconuts, which is dependent
on the maturity and quality of the coconuts. As a result, the
inventory standard costs used by the Group may be
incorrect.

FERRNERMETFEEFAE - T ERMBARTF - K
REG KABEXZEMSEAZZE WERED .

MISHERTR MR EEBKAE « 8 F 2 AT H
EHEREKNEEBRETPNRRETHE UEREE
BRERR -FERERAXZBFIEMNENZE - MIZR
ERRRBF 2R AEREE - A EXEMERS
ZFERERARNT AL T EHE -

This assessment required significant judgement and
estimation by the Group. Accordingly, we identified the
valuation of inventories (other than packaging material) as a
key audit matter.

AR EAER EEEFELERAE RMET - Bt &
ZEEORFEZHEBEMHRIN BN REREZS
I8 o

In this area, our audit procedures include:

EZOH BEZ2EGREFBRE:

° Obtained an understanding of and assessed the design
and implementation of management’s key internal
controls over the processes of calculating the inventory
standard costs.

s THEAILEEEHAEFERERNAZERFZH
58 Q BRI 2 2R A SRR B

° Assessed the historical accuracy of arriving at the
inventory standard costs.

e HEEBEEEEXNNZESLBEMLE -

° Agreed the cost of raw materials to third party supplier
invoices on a sampling basis.

s MWMERERNF=ZSTHEMRHEZEZZZHBERME
DN

° Challenged the reasonableness of the key inputs within
the inventory standard costs and the evidence
supporting the underlying assumptions used by the
Group by comparing to the underlying records.

e HAEUWTHETHL HR SEEETERERX
AFAERzARBABELXFEERRZEBE
Bt
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
annual report and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the annual report and, in doing so, consider whether
the annual report is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of the annual report, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

51 75 ¥R % AR BURT R LS
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
pasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and
fair view.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our auditors’ report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

e FEHRAMBBRZEBEIHIA &
BEAT BREEEEHN UREAER
BHRREEAARREBEIZINEE -
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Other Matter

This report is made solely to the shareholders of the Company, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other
person for the content of this report.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’
report is Sia Chin Hoe.

KPMG PLT

Chartered Accountants

Level 10, KPMG Tower

8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia

Date: 28 March 2018

Hib=1H

AREER ERQA
S AN Al R E
CONAES TET"JE%/\iE,\ °

B %Hxﬁ#ﬁzi Bt 2
Rig - BEMARARE

HEXBYIZEMBE 2 EZBEEARAR
Sia Chin Hoe °

KPMG PLT
FEFEATAD
Level 10, KPMG Tower
8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama
47800 Petaling Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Othe/r Comprehensive Income
meBEnkEMEEKE K

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZT—+F+_A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-K
Note RM RM
BRAE BoRF R
B et - °FH
I
Revenue Uk & 4 96,523,837 89,795,056
Cost of sales S5 & A AN (65,029,580) (59,227,157)
Gross profit E R 31,494,257 30,567,899
Other income H g A 5 652,722 1,657,732
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHAXZ (5,647,423) (5,626,869)
Administrative expenses TERHAX (20,012,924) (8,034,672)
Other expenses HEtH X (1,480,735) -
Profit from operations P =gl 5,005,897 18,564,090
Finance income B 75 U A 6 189,953 10,700
Finance costs B 75 B ZX 7 (376,973) (336,475)
Net finance costs BT R AR5 (187,020) (325,775)
Profit before taxation B Bt A 0% A 4,818,877 18,238,315
Income tax expense s 8 (4,408,046) (4,881,014)
Profit for the year FRRA 9 410,831 13,357,301
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for FREMZE (%) WA
the year, net of tax (MBRBIE)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to Hi#ngte g HE
profit or loss: Em A
Foreign currency translation differences SN E R (2,748,679) 3,071
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for ER2EBIX)WAEE
the year (2,337,848) 13,360,372

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share S RZEREARAR B ERF

(expressed in Sen): (LR =) - 12 0.04 1.65
I

The notes on pages 102 to 168 are an integral part of these financial F102E168E 2 M E RSB R K
statements. ZHBRER S o
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As at 31 December 2017 R-_Z—+F+-A=+—8

Note

ff i

2017
—E—+tF
RM
BRAE

A =4
I8

Assets
Non-current assets

BE
HRBEE

2016

—E -
RM
BoRF R
A=

< A

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE L& 13 24,746,533 21,666,828
Deferred tax assets FREFRIEE E 21 36,304 49,464
24,782,837 21,716,292
Current assets REBEE
Inventories Ve 16 30,315,062 19,924,361
Current tax asset BNEAR IR & E 656,665 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E e FRIE 17 18,289,111 22,240,123
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 18 59,425,300 10,115,057
108,686,138 52,279,541
Total assets EE#E 133,468,975 73,995,833
Equity and liabilities EEREE
Equity =
Share capital R& 2 19 5,941,706 —*
Share premium f& 0 %= 8 58,707,916 —
Reserves 1 51,049,108 53,386,956
115,698,730 53,386,956
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Loans and borrowings B REwR 20 3,404,583 3,798,876
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 21 2,319,439 2,649,900
5,724,022 6,448,776
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B HIRR R @

nv-_F
As at 31 December 2017 W—_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Note RM RM
BERfEE: i
B aF - a1
.

Current liabilities REBEE
Loans and borrowings EREER 20 1,396,096 3,259,833
Trade and other payables B 5 N H e FRIE 22 8,931,171 9,073,811
Current tax liabilities BNEAFI B & & 1,718,956 1,826,457
12,046,223 14,160,101
Total liabilities EEHE 17,770,245 20,608,877
Total equity and liabilities EzRkaBeE 133,468,975 73,995,833
Total assets less current liabilities EE#HERRBARE 121,422,752 59,835,732

* The balance represents amount less than RM1.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March

2018.

Tang Koon Fook
Director
Tang Koon Fook

EF

The notes on pages 102 to 168 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

* EHRIELIMIBERETSE

I

IR -

ExgnX_T-N\F=ZA-+NA#t

R IR RT3 -

Lee Sieng Poon
Director
Lee Sieng Poon

EF

F1022168H Z M sE W2 S B IS 3R &

ZHERER S
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Consolidated Staterne\n/t of Changes in Equity
NEREDREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+-A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RKATEZRREN
Translation
Share Share Other reserve
capital premium reserve (Note (Note Retained Total
(Note 19(b)) (Note 19(c(i)) 19(c(ii))) 19(c(iii))) earnings equity
;&N R EE HtfEE BRERS
(Bt =% (B & (B &% (B &%
19(b)) 19(c(i))) 19(c(ii))) 19(c(iii))) REEF MRS
RM RM RM RM RM RM
BRAE HkEE BSRAELE BRAE HBRALE HFERAE
HE *H *HE *HE HE *HE
At 1 January 2016 RZE—XE
—B—8H - — 150,200 285 46,576,099 46,726,584
Profit for the year F R A - - - — 18,357,301 13,357,301
Other comprehensive income for 4 7 £ #b 2 T A
the year — — — 3,071 — 3,071
Total comprehensive income for £ A & [ U A 48 58
the year — — — 3,071 13,357,301 13,360,372
Dividend paid by a subsidiary e =NGIE )
&8 — - — — (6,700,000) (6,700,000
At 31 December 2016/ R=ZB-—RE
1 January 2017 +=ZA=+—-8/
—E—+tF
—A—H —* - 150,200 3,356 53,233,400 53,386,956
Profit for the year 4 7935 F - - - - 410,831 410,831
Other comprehensive expense for 45 A E 4t 2 [ ] 52
the year - - —  (2,748679) —  (2,748679)
Total comprehensive expense £ X2 H B X458
for the year - - —  (2748679) 410831  (2,337,848)
Contributions by and distributions 7K 2% @] # B A 11 &
to owners of R &1L 53k
the Company
— Shares issued under —BRXAHARE
initial public offering, B AR 19 B 1T
net of share issuance (B B’ 5
expenses BITHX) 1,485,427 63,164,195 — — — 64,649,622
— Capitalisation of — R E
share premium ¥ N4 4,456,279 (4,456,279) — — — —
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+tF
+=ZA=+—H 5,941,706 58,707,916 150,200  (2,745,323) 53,644,231 115,698,730
1! /' /' !/ [} ____[]]
* The balances represent amounts less than RM1. N LA LN E R T S > S0E o

The notes on pages 102 to 168 are an integral part of these financial  Z5102% 1688 M :F Jh X S B 53R &k 7 4B K
statements. 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv__]_\
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —F

IE%/)IL%%%

—tFtA=t—RLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Note RM RM
Bt BERAZSE BRAGELSH
I
Cash flows from operating activities RETHFEELSARE
Profit before tax b %% A/ i A 4,818,877 18,238,315
Adjustments for: BT EEELAE -
Bad debts written off 122 BR i 5N 9 9,347 51,879
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BMEMIREITE 13 2,013,191 1,801,980
Finance costs B 75 PR 7 376,973 336,475
Finance income R AN 6 (189,953) (10,700)
Gain on disposal of an associate ak=—3:- NI & 9 = (40,2006)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and HeEY % B R ENEES
equipment (Wz%) %58 9 53,916 (25,608)
Net loss/(gain) on foreign exchange differences SNE Z R () F 58 1,052,191 (1,874,998)
Operating profit before changes in working capital % & & € % B 5 f 8 & % 7 8,134,542 18,477,137
Change in inventories FEEH (10,390,701) 2,083,282
Change in trade and other receivables B REMERE /T/\ IE & 3,131,874 (6,555,854)
Change in trade and other payables B REMENRIEEZH (166,412) (7,704,457)
Cash generated from operations KETHHRERS 709,303 6,300,108
Income tax paid B ATSR (5,489,513) (5,628,055)
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities ReETES (A, FEREEH (4,780,210) 672,053
Cash flows from investing activities RETHMERERE
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment WHEME - WENMKRE (5,192,185) (1,601,646)
Interest received B U F B 189,953 10,700
Proceed from disposal of an associate HE B & A R TS 3B = 40,206
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment HE ¥ % « ME L& 1% g k18 45,373 2,885,282
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities RETE(FTA) MEREFH (4,956,859) 1,334,542
Cash flows from financing activities METEAESELSRE
Capital element of finance leases paid ENRERENERT D (25,083) (79,707)
Dividend paid by a subsidiary WEQR RS = (6,700,000)
Interest and other borrowing costs paid BB REME ;7\52. $ (372,756) (328,579)
Interest element of finance leases paid ENf@MERENTHE (4,217) (7,896)
Proceeds from new bank loans LR ITE RS %’& 6,913,000 8,952,000
Proceeds from shares issued under initial public offering, 1815 & X AR & E & 1TRMHE
net of issuance expenses FR8 R IE (MR EITHAL) 64,649,622 -
Repayments of bank loans RITERER (7,146,352) (11,904,260)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities BEFBFRE (FTR)REFHE 64,014,214 (10,068,442)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ReRHRSESEYHEM
equivalents (mA) FE 54,277,145 (8,061,847)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BHRERREEEY 8,115,462 14,810,882
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgFHHgE (2,967,307) 1,366,427
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RTZA=+t—HHWRERES
ZEY 18 59,425,300 8,115,462

The notes on pages 102 to 168 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

I
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

S&P International Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 10 November 2016.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of coconut cream powder, low fat
desiccated coconut and other related products. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange on 11 July
2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@) Reorganisation

Pursuant to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”),
S&P (Hong Kong) Holding Limited, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired the entire equity interests
in Edaran Bermutu Sdn. Bhd., Radiant Span Sdn. Bhd., Rasa
Mulia Sdn. Bhd. and Shifu Ingredients Sdn. Bhd. from Mr. Tang
Koon Fook (“Mr. Tang”) and Mr. Lee Sieng Poon (“Mr. Lee”)
(together the “Controlling Shareholders”) on 29 December
2016. Subsequent to the Reorganisation, the Company
became the holding company of these companies now
comprising the Group. As all the companies now comprising
the Group that took part in the Reorganisation were beneficially
owned and controlled by the Controlling Shareholders before
and after the Reorganisation, there was a continuation of the
risks and benefits to the Controlling Shareholders. Accordingly,
the Reorganisation is considered to be a business combination
of entities under common control. These financial statements
have been prepared using the merger basis of accounting as if
the companies now comprising the Group have been
consolidated as at the beginning of the reporting period
presented. The assets and liabilities of the consolidating
companies are recognised and measured using the historical
carrying amounts from the Controlling Shareholders’
perspective.

ANCE-E
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BE-NNRN—FEIFEH(EHKEE
BET) BB RANAAEMBK M RERH R
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EMBAR(GRIASEDETREKR
RERBEEMEN K HE R E
BEmMm ARARNR_-_ZF—tFtA
T HERBRAERLED -
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(@ E#A

BiEEBEEH(EAR])  NAFH
fEl 52 2 & [t /& & §1S&P (Hong Kong)
Holding Limited /A = Z — ;N F + =
A =+ L B A Tang Koon Fook %t 4
([Tang st 4 J) K Lee Sieng Poon 5t
A (TLeeft &£ 1) (B EAR AR E D)
I B Edaran Bermutu Sdn. Bhd. -
Radiant Span Sdn. Bhd. * Rasa Mulia
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Brd By 2B - BEHK AR
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
IFRSs, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”). These financial statements also comply with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are set out in Note 3.

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs. For
the purpose of preparing these financial statements, the Group
has adopted all applicable new and revised IFRSs for the
current and prior accounting periods, except for any new
standards or interpretations that will be effective for the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The
new and revised accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations issued that will be effective for the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2018 are set out below.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Amendments to IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards (Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle)

Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment:
Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts: Applying
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

Amendments to IAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Venture (Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2014-2016 Cycle)

Amendments to IAS 40, Investment Property: Transfers of
Investment Property
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations (Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial Instruments —
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Amendments to IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements (Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes (Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

Amendments to IAS 19, Employee benefits — Plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement

Amendments to IAS 283, Borrowing Costs (Annual
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle)

Amendments to IAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures — Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures
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(b) Statement of compliance (continued)

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021
o IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or

after a date yet to be confirmed

° Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial
Statements and IAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint VVenture

The Group will apply the abovementioned accounting
standards, amendments and interpretations that are applicable
to the Group when they become effective.

The initial application of the accounting standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have any material financial
impacts to the financial statements of the Group.

() IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 replaces the guidance in IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement on the
classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, impairment of financial assets, and on
hedge accounting.

IFRS 9 contains a new classification and measurement
approach for financial assets that reflects the business
model in which assets are managed and their cash flow
characteristics. IFRS 9 also introduces a new impairment
model with a forward-looking expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Statement of compliance (continued)

(i)

(i)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Based on the assessment, the Group does not expect
the application of IFRS 9 to have a significant impact on
its consolidated financial statements, other than the
disclosure impact of which the Group is finalising.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. IFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, IAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and IAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue
from construction contracts. Based on the assessment
completed to date, the possible impact identified by the
Group is as follows:

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in
Note 3(m). Currently, revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when goods are either loaded onto the carrier
at port or delivered at the customers’ premises which is
taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes goods and services tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any returns and
trade discounts.
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(b) Statement of compliance (continued)

(i)

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. IFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of
the promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

When the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

When the entity’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall
into any of these 3 situations, then under IFRS 15 the
entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good or
service at a single point in time, being when control has
passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only
one of the indicators that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard
is not likely to have significant impact on how it recognises
revenue from its sales of goods.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Statement of compliance (continued)
(i) IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 replaces the guidance in IAS 17, Leases, IFRIC 4,
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
IFRIC 15, Operating Leases — Incentives and IFRIC 27,
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of adopting
IFRS 16.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company and other investment holding subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, the British Virgin Islands
and Hong Kong have their functional currencies in Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$”) and subsidiaries established in the Malaysia and
Singapore have their functional currencies in Malaysian Ringgit
(“RM”) and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) respectively. As the Group
mainly operates in Malaysia, RM is used as the presentation
currency of the financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(e) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and
in any future periods affected.

There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and
critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements other than as disclosed below:

Valuation of inventories

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted average
method. The primary raw materials is coconuts, which is a
commaodity, and its cost generally affected by markets factors,
such as price fluctuations, market supply and demand, logistics
and transportation costs. The cost of coconuts is adjusted with
anticipated wastages and losses in the production process in
order to derive the inventory standard costs. The inventory
standard costs are affected by the extraction yield from the
coconuts, which is dependent on the maturity and quality of the
coconuts. This assessment required significant judgement and
estimation. The carrying amount of the inventories is disclosed
in Note 16.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to the periods presented in these financial statements and have been
applied constantly by Group entities, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled
by the Group. The results of subsidiaries are included in the
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Merger accounting is adopted for
common control combinations (see below) in which all of the
combining entities are ultimately controlled by the same
controlling shareholders both before and after the business
combination and that control is not transitory.

The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing
control only when such rights are substantive. The Group also
considers it has de facto power over an investee when, despite
not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current ability
to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the
investee’s return.

Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any impairment
losses (see Note 3(i)(ii), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale or distribution. The cost of investment includes
transaction costs.

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in
entities that are under the control of the shareholders that
control the Group are accounted for as if the acquisition had
occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented or, if later, at the date that common control was
established; for this purpose comparatives are restated. The
assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at the carrying
amounts recognised from the Controlling Shareholders’
perspective. All differences between the cost of acquisition (fair
value of consideration paid) and the amounts at which the
assets and liabilities are recorded have been recognised directly
in equity as part of the other reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group
derecognises the assets and liabilities of the former subsidiary,
any non-controlling interests and the other components of
equity related to the former subsidiary from the consolidated
statement of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising on
the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group
retains any interest in the former subsidiary, then such interest
is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost.
Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity accounted
investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on
the level of influence retained.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised
income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the financial statements.

Associates

Associates are entities, including unincorporated entities, in
which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over
the financial and operating policies.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the financial
statements using the equity method less any impairment losses
(see Note 3(i)(ii). The cost of the investment includes transaction
costs. The financial statements include the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate,
after adjustments if any, to align the accounting policies with
those of the Group, from the date that significant influence
commences until the date that significant influence ceases.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an
associate, the carrying amount of that interest including any
long-term investments is reduced to nil, and the recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3. FESHBXRwm

(b) Associates (continued) (b) Bt DA @

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, any retained interest in the former associate at the
date when significant influence is lost is measured at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the initial carrying amount of a
financial asset. The difference between the fair value of any
retained interest plus proceeds from the interest disposed of
and the carrying amount of the investment at the date when
equity method is discontinued is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group’s interest in an associate decreases but does
not result in a loss of significant influence, any retained interest
is not remeasured. Any gain or loss arising from the decrease in
interest is recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are also
reclassified proportionately to profit or loss if that gain or loss
would be required to be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-
accounted associates are eliminated against the investment to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees. Unrealised
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Investment in an associate is measured in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any impairment
losses (see Note 3(i)(ii). The cost of the investment includes
transaction costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3. FEETBXRwm

(c) Foreign currency (c) s

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the
respective functional currencies of the entities comprising the
Group at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the end of the reporting period are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are not retranslated at the end of the reporting date,
except for those that are measured at fair value are retranslated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that
the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RM at the
exchange rates which approximate the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RM at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the translation
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a
monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future,
foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary
item are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign
operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income,
and are presented in the translation reserve within equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Financial instruments

(i)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables on
the date when they are originated. The Group
derecognises a financial asset or a part of it when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in
such derecognised financial asset that is created or
retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset
or liability.

Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities are individually recognised on the
trade date when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Group
derecognises a financial liability or a part of it when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expired.

The non-derivative financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

0]

Recognition and measurement

Freehold land and property under construction are
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses (see Note 3(i)(ii). Other items of property, plant and
equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (see
Note 3(i)(ii)).

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset and any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for
its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located. The cost of self-constructed assets also
includes the cost of materials and direct labour.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of
the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Subsequent cost

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within the component will flow to the
Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced component is
derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-
day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset. Significant
components of individual assets are assessed, and if a
component has a useful life that is different from the
remainder of that asset, then that component is
depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property, plant and equipment
from the date that they are available for use. Leased
assets are depreciated over the lease term unless it is
reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership
by the end of the lease term, in which case they are
depreciated over their useful lives.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(f)

(iii) Depreciation (Continued)

Freehold land is not depreciated. Property, plant and
equipment under construction are not depreciated until
the assets are ready for their intended use.

The principal annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

Leasehold land 2%
Factory buildings and

other buildings 3%—4%
Plant and machinery 7%-20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture, fittings and

equipment 10%-15%

Depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed at
end of the reporting period, and adjusted as appropriate.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

0]

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Leased assets (continued)

B 7% 3R 3= Y 5 o

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in Note 3(e)(iii). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in Note 3(i)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period.

(iii) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

made.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted average
method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
In the case of unpacked finished goods and finished goods,
cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads
based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and
balances with licensed banks which have an insignificant risk of
changes in fair value with original maturities of three months or
less, and are used by the Group in the management of their
short term commitments. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are
presented net of bank overdrafts.

Impairment

(i) Financial assets

All financial assets (except for investments in subsidiaries
and interest in an associate) are assessed at each
reporting date whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events having an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.
Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter
how likely, are not recognised.

An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is
recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i)

Impairment (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment
loss decrease and the decrease can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed what the carrying amount would have
been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Other assets

The carrying amounts of other assets (except for
inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash-
generating units.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its related cash-generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i)

0)

Impairment (Continued)

(ii)

Other assets (Continued)

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amounts of the assets in the cash-generating unit (or
groups of cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are
assessed at the end of each reporting period for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the reporting period in which the
reversals are recognised.

Equity instruments

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial
recognition and are not remeasured subsequently.

0]

(ii)

Issue expenses

Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments
classified as equity are recognised as a deduction from
equity.

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of
salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and other
benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

The Group’s contributions to statutory pension funds,
which are defined contribution retirement plans, are
charged to profit or loss in the financial year to which they
relate. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in future payments is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

(m)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are either loaded
onto the carrier at port or delivered at the customers’
premises which is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes goods and
services tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any returns and trade discounts.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method in profit or loss.

(ii)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii) Rental income
Rental income is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives
granted are recognised as an integral part of the total
rental income, over the term of the lease. Rental income
is recognised as other income.

(n) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or completed.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3. FEETBXRwm

(o) Income tax

(0) FTBH

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or
items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive
income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the
taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous financial
years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing
for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in these consolidated statements of
financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not
recognised for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on
the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they
intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(P)

(@)

(r

Earnings per ordinary share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data
for its ordinary shares (“EPS”).

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period, adjusted for own shares held.

Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares
held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which comprise convertible notes and share options granted to
employees.

Operating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Group that
engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue
and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the Group’s other components.
Operating segments’ results are reviewed regularly by the chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and
for which discrete financial information is available.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(@ has control or joint control over the Group;

(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

3. FESHBXRwm
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Related parties (continued)

(i)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

@)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

3. FEETBXRwm
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3. FESHBXRwm

(s) Fair value measurements (s) AAEBEE

Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for lease transactions,
is determined as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market.

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair
value are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the input used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2.  inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in circumstances
that caused the transfers.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W R o PER
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing and trading AEBNTEEK AR ENE FHE
of coconut cream powder, low fat desiccated coconut and other W EJEE R R EMERE SR -
related products.
Revenue represented the sales value of coconut cream powder, low WHERAEFLIHEMEER  (KIFHEZ -
fat desiccated coconut, coconut milk and other related products to W REMBEERNEEEE (B
customers net of trade discounts and returns. TEWINREESE) o
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RM RM
BRAZESE BHRALRSH
I
Revenue from the sales of HETIERHKE
— Coconut cream powder — MR 4% 1 82,476,981 79,054,432
— Low fat desiccated coconut — KA 7,297,451 3,546,111
— Coconut milk — B 2,158,607 3,415,093
— Others — Hih 4,590,798 3,779,420
96,523,837 89,795,056

L

The chief operating decision maker of the Group assesses the
performance and allocates the resources of the Group as a whole, as
all of the Group’s activities are considered to be primarily dependent
on the manufacturing and trading of coconut cream powder, low fat
desiccated coconut and other related products. Therefore,
management considers there is only one operating segment under
the requirements of IFRS 8, Operating Segments. In this regard, no
segment information is presented.

HRAEENE2EERBRAESEEK
BEENREEMEY  EETE REM
HEER AEEXIELERRENG
AEBNEBRBRALRERNE - Bt
REBEBERM B REENFSRLL S
HRE BERERRER —HAKEDE-
UL E - BAZDEEH -
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information on the geographical locations
of the Group’s revenue from external customers. The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which the goods are
delivered.

W= Ko IE R @

15 F

TR b 395 405 A o AR 000
BEMEOER - BN 618
B B TE -

2017 2016

—E—tF  ZBKF

RM RM

ERALRSE BRARSH

N

Malaysia itk 20,267,917 20,640,658
Jamaica FEM 22,517,195 24,282,310
United Arab Emirates FAAEE A B R 12,475,510 6,009,912
Saudi Arabia bt B h7 1A 9,565,247 9,364,308
Belize =RAIE73 4,226,538 4,435,699
Other countries and regions HE R & & 27,471,430 25,062,169
96,523,837 89,795,056

The Group carries out its operations in Malaysia and all of the Group’s
non-current assets are located in Malaysia.
Major customer

Company A is the only major customer with revenue equal or more
than 10% of the Group’s total revenue:

AEERBRAZRELE  KAKHE
AR EEAMUNFRA: -

FEEF

NRAARE - —BRFENHLBBANE
EEKFI0%NERRP

2017 2016
—E—tF —F-AF
RM RM
FREDSE BABDSHE

L

RAA(BHE

Hy
Dv}:};
=

Company A (including all common control
companies)

=+

.

H

NI

31,192,313 31,623,252

I
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OTHER INCOME 5. Hlt A
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
RM RM
BRARSE BRAESEH
e
Gain on disposal of an associate & B A B E - 40,206
Net gain on disposal of plant and equipment & B I 3% 1 A M e SRR - 25,608
Net gain on foreign exchange differences GNPE 2= FE UL 28 JF 58 - 1,164,399
Rental income el A 204,000 216,000
Others Hih 448,722 211,519
652,722 1,657,732
FINANCE INCOME 6. ABHBWA
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
RM RM
BRARSE BRAESH
Bank interest income |ITH B U A 189,953 10,700
FINANCE COSTS 7. R
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
RM RM
BRAZSE BARALTSE
e
Interest on bank overdrafts RITHELFE 9,610 28,630
Interest on bank loans RITERF A 346,527 258,139
Interest on finance leases MEREF S 4,217 7,896
Other borrowing costs M SR AR 16,619 41,810
376,973 336,475

L
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FIEBiEx
(@ SeEEREMEEWE

(@) Income tax expense in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other RAFREBHBEALIE:
comprehensive income represents:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RM RM

BREDRSE SRAZTH
——

ENEIBIE — S RATHEB

Current tax — Malaysian Income Tax

Current year KEE 4,643,419 4,360,401
Under/(Over) provision in respect of prior years BT EEEE TR,
(HRRERE ) 81,928 (49,808)
4,725,347 4,310,593
Deferred tax ELEBE
Origination and reversal of temporary differences & A4 K # o] & b = 58 (52,706) 570,421
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEHEERE (264,595) —
(317,301) 570,421
4,408,046 4,881,014

I

The Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: 16.5%). The Group is not subject to
Hong Kong profits tax as it has no assessable income arising in
and derived from Hong Kong for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Malaysian Income Tax has been provided at the statutory tax
rates of 24% (2016: 24%) on the estimated chargeable income
arising in Malaysia for the year ended 31 December 2017,
except for certain subsidiaries that are entitled to tax rates at 6%
lower than the statutory tax rates for their first RM500,000
chargeable income during the financial year (see Note 8(b)).

rEEBASMNEHERER
BEBELAREH -

HEz-_Z—+tF+=-A=+—8
IEFE BEFMESHME A16.5%
TE—REFE165%) cHE T
—tFER_E-—XNF+A=+
—HIEFE ARTERE KR
BEEENERERBBA A
SEBEBNEBREH

HE-_ZZ—+tHF+=A=+—
BEFE 5 XRARTELNG
AFERBRWAIZ24%(ZF — <
F 2% METHEHERFRA
DR HRZMBRFEEE
500,000 %5 R 75 g8 & 7 7 & 3R Fi UK
ABBIRER AT E6% K T X
BB TH B R ABRIN R
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8. FIBHHAIw®W
(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense b) REBRABRETENFER
and accounting profit at an applicable tax BXHEEST RN ZBEMNY
rate: iR :
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
RM RM
BREA BERAESE
Ee——
Profit before tax B 5% A1 4 A 4,818,877 18,238,315
ImmﬂwwmmwmemeﬁmmWﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%iﬁ?%%
tax rate of 24% (2016: 24%) TR NF 24%)FHER
Fﬁ 7 1,156,530 4,377,196
Effect of preferential tax rate charged on a RERADRFMALZHET
portion of chargeable income for certain M A RIE) — 3o ERT
subsidiaries incorporated in Malaysia* WAL BER RGN
o (53,896) (65,997)
Effect of a reduction in tax rate by stages on LR 38 A] U U A 5 B ERRL
incremental chargeable income* DR R R (46,948) —
Effect of non-deductible expenses AR A& 3,545,927 619,222
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEBRERE (182,667) (49,808)
Effect of recognition of previously unrecognised & 22 38 1+ K 1 2
temporary differences TREBENTE (10,900) -
Others HAptb = 401
Income tax expense FTig Bl 4,408,046 4,881,014

According to the tax regulations in Malaysia, certain subsidiaries with paid-
up capital of RM2.5 million (2016: RM2.5 million) or below at the beginning
of the basis year of assessment are subject to a lower corporate tax rate
of 18% (2016: 19%) on chargeable income up to RM500,000 (2016:
RM500,000). Chargeable income in excess of RM500,000 (2016:
RM500,000) is charged at statutory tax rate.

The above preferential tax rate is not applicable to the subsidiaries which
have more than 50% of their paid-up capital owned by an entity with a
paid-up capital exceeding RM2,500,000 at the beginning of the basis year
of assessment.

L

REBRAENHBEER  BEBRAE
R2EEBERALLSETF(ZE—X
F25EBERATSH)KIUTH
ETHBARIMRTFEHEEEFFL
) JE 53 7 U A 500,000 5 K 78 a8 &
H(=Z — /X% : 500,000 F K fhgn %
) BR18% (=T — /N F 1 19%) i
R DR R - nERTUA R

#500,000F KA S H _?7*
4+ 500,000 5 % 74 28 % CBliRE
TR REB -

FMEFIHETEANTHELESF

F V)8R B 7K 8 382,500,000 f5 2R 7@
TEMEBTEA B B50%H R K
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8. FBHMEXwm

(b) EBAM
23

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense

and accounting profit at an applicable tax B X Ed

rate: (Continued) : COE )

* According to Malaysian Budget 2017, there is a reduction of tax rate by RE-—Z—+tESRKAREEFR
stages based on a percentage increase in income compared to the KRR — T HEENKRAERER

previous year of assessment as follows: D RBERB OB EMAT

o One percentage point for increase in chargeable income between 5% . ] R U U A BN N T 5% =
t0 9.99%; 9.99% Rl > — {8 & o B
o Two percentage point for increase in chargeable income between . Al R U U A B Y F10% 2

10% to 14.99%; 14.99% K55 2 MEE 5 2

. Three percentage point for increase in chargeable income between .
15% to 19.99%; and

A B W A K 0 Y T 5% =
19.99%E R D> =EBE D8 &

o Four percentage point for increase in chargeable income of 20% . AT U IR A 8 5120% K BA b BEF
and above. B TEE 5 8 e
9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. FMAiF
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Note RM RM
M BRAZESE SRATELH
I
Profit for the year is arrived at after FREMNESHEBRTH
charging: EA :
Auditors’ remuneration = 8RB & 215,863 76,000
Bad debts written off 122 BR 1 8 9,347 51,879
Personnel expenses (including Directors’ AEER
emoluments): (BIEEEHH) :
— Wages, salaries and other benefits —TIT&- %ﬁ% K EH b fE F 9,225,509 9,603,715
— Contributions to Employees’ Provident —EERABEEMHR
Fund 581,370 668,042
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - = L& BT E 13 2,013,191 1,801,980
Net loss on disposal of plant and equipment & M E K& &% 5 E518 % 58 53,916 —
Net loss on foreign exchange differences HNE ZE BB 18R E 1,426,819 -
Rental of premises HEWME 357,581 302,431
Listing expenses FHHEX 13,209,615 1,856,600
and after crediting: Wt ATHIER :
Gain on disposal of an associate SRS QR WS 5 - 40,206
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BEMEEWZE
equipment = 5 = 25,608
Net gain on foreign exchange differences HNFE 2= B8 W 28R RE 5 - 1,164,399
Rental income & WA 5 204,000 216,000

I
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Mr. Tang Koon Fook and Mr. Lee Sieng Poon were appointed as
directors of the Company on 10 November 2016 (date of
incorporation) and were re-designated as executive directors on 22
March 2017. Mr. Yap Boon Teong and Ms. Wong Yuen Lee were
appointed as executive directors of the Company on 22 March 2017.
Mr. Fung Che Wai Anthony, Mr. Chong Yew Hoong and Mr. Ng Hock
Boon were appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 8 June 2017.

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are
as follows:

10.

E =5

Tang Koon Fook 7t 4 & Lee Sieng Poon 5&
ERZEFE—RF+—A+AGEMK
A EZERARAEFIA T —
+tE=ZA -+t -_BATAERNTTES-
Yap Boon Teong %& 4 K Wong Yuen Lee
ZITRZE—tHF=AZ+HEZ
FRARFANTESZ  BEREE
Chong Yew Hoong %t 4 % Ng Hock Boon
EFER_Z—LEtFANBEZER
RABBEIIEMITES -

REB(E B R AR E 381(1) & R (2 A
(BRBEESHEER) RODFE 2R WEN
EEHEOT

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z—tHE+-A=+—-HLEE

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to Employees’

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund Total

E2 A= 4:l EEARS
EEwE REYNE BBEIREA N BEr
RM RM RM RM RM
BREE BERAEE BRAEE BRAEE BRAEE
A a1 <HE <LHE <LHE

IRERITES

Chairman and executive
director

Tang Koon Fook Tang Koon Fook 25,062 557,411 - 64,368 646,841

Executive directors HITESE

Lee Sieng Poon Lee Sieng Poon 25,062 411,152 - 48,156 484,370

Yap Boon Teong Yap Boon Teong 25,062 255,010 - 29,940 310,012

Wong Yuen Lee Wong Yuen Lee 25,062 132,605 - 15,408 173,075

Independent non-executive B EHTE S

directors

Fung Che Wai Anthony HER 31,328 - - - 31,328

Chong Yew Hoong Chong Yew Hoong 31,328 - - - 31,328

Ng Hock Boon Ng Hock Boon 31,328 - - - 31,328
194,232 1,356,178 - 157,872 1,708,282
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 10. EEH M @)

Year ended 31 December 2016
HE_ZT—XREF+-_A=+—HIFE

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to Employees’
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary Provident
fees in kind bonuses Fund Total
Frae o 2R BiE EEQAES
E=xme RE®WMN= TEAT R @t
RM RM RM RM RM
B D BRAEDE B RFE R HokdaE HBARFAEDR
& S S S &%
Chairman and executive FE & HTES
director
Tang Koon Fook Tang Koon Fook — 542,099 149,957 81,763 773,819
Executive directors HITESE
Lee Sieng Poon Lee Sieng Poon — 405,417 103,332 60,090 568,839
Yap Boon Teong Yap Boon Teong — 257,012 57,598 36,637 351,247
Wong Yuen Lee Wong Yuen Lee — 130,163 28,125 18,663 176,951
— 1,334,691 339,012 197,153 1,870,856

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments have been paid to the Directors as inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. No
Directors waived or had agreed to waive any emoluments.

HE-_ZT—+t&FRk=-Z—X~"F+=A
S+—HIEFE AEBVTERNEEY
TR F BN - 7B A H A & B 55 00
AREBERRN R NIEABRME -

BEFRENCRABREEAHH -
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11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2016: three)
are directors whose emoluments are as disclosed in Note 10. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other one (2016: two)
individual is as follows:

11.

REFMAL

ERABBHRNALS ME(ZT—
REZR)ALREE RENOFH
B R 10 B — % (=T — A
F M) ALOFMEREMT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

RM RM

BRAZESE SRELSEH

e

Salaries and other benefits He REMER 150,927 338,081
Discretionary bonuses B 15 E 4T 5,320 —
Contributions to Employees’ Provident Fund BEATBESMHX 18,264 40,320
174,511 378,401

!

The emoluments of the above individuals with the highest emoluments
are within the following band:

&S HEMALTOHHEBRIATE

I

:
2017 2016
—E—+F A=
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ATEHE AT EH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000 7T

L

1 2
L

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments have been paid to these highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

BHE_Z—+ttFE_ZE—XF+=A
T+ —HALFE - AEEYERSS T
AT EREMW EREMAXSE
B A MARNEERNNER N ELBH
BRfE -
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12. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE 12. SREBERER
The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share was based on BRLEEBREARBHN IRE L L R A&
the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of RM410,831 (2016: HEEMERN410831EXRAL ST (=
RM13,357,301) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares — 734 13,357,301 5 JKEEE%\ Y RiE
outstanding of 938,712,329 ordinary shares (2016: the deemed B 17 E A% 0 #E 19 #1938,712,329 ik
weighted average number of 810,000,000 ordinary shares of the TEAR(ZE-—RF:ERNETHEH
Company based on the number of outstanding shares before the 810,000,000 8% 748 2 &) 3 38 B% (1R & & X
initial public offering (“IPO”) (see Note 19(b)). ANHEBE((HRXAARABE]) D EITR
MEEFE)FE (RHFE190)) °
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —T-REF

Deemed issued ordinary shares before the IPO

L

RERAFAZEENEFEDE

TERRKR 810,000,000 810,000,000
Effect of ordinary shares issued upon the IPO RERXARAEERFETEBR
Eop=2= 128,712,329 —
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R+ZA=+—H®HE@IEM
at 31 December R II 8 938,712,329 810,000,000
e
2017 2016
—E—+tF NS
Sen Sen
Al il
e
Basic earnings per ordinary share FREBRELREF 0.04 1.65

The diluted earnings per ordinary share is similar to the basic earnings
per ordinary share as the Group does not have any material potential
dilutive ordinary shares in issuance.

I

RASEEVHEMAZTERNEBELEE
WEMBEHITEBK SR T RS
ERMNEGREBRERZFIALE-

QH}

St

.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BERRE
Leasehold
land with
unexpired Factory
lease period buildings and Furniture,
Freehold of more than other Plant and Motor  fittingsand Construction
land 50 years buildings ~ machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
FBES
KAER BASEHN  IRER BER HE %RE
T HEL# REMEP B "E R#E  HERIE hy
RM RM RM RM RM RM RM RM
SREL SRED SREE SRER  HRED SRED EREE SRER
?E ?E E ?E ?E ?E ?E FE
Cost BA&
At 1 January 2016 WZE-"F-A—-H 2,597,046 415170 18,635927 20,769,103 677,720 2,446,846 16,700 45,558,512
Additions RE 300,000 - 32,403 648,223 - 113,722 507,298 1,601,646
Disposals e (2,500,000) - (34,201) (521,167) - (354,471) — (3,409,839
Transfers B - - 371,461 16,700 - - (388,161) -
At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017 R-E—~E+-A=+—-0/
ZT—+F-f-H 397,046 415170 19,005590 20,912,859 677,720 2,206,097 135,837 43,750,319
Additions RE 3,400,000 - 48,000 1,422,612 - 114,886 206,687 5,192,185
Disposals e - - - (705,949) - (36,271) - (7142220)
Transfers B - - 25,100 - - - (25,100) -
At 31 December 2017 R-_F—+F+-A=1-H 3,797,046 415170 19,078,690 21,629,522 677,720 2,284,712 317,424 48,200,284

Accumulated depreciation ZitHE
At 1 January 2016 RZF-~"E—-A—H - 143,922 5,365,526 12,738,198 596,183 1,987,847 — 20,831,676
Charge for the year FRFTE - 8,303 660,833 1,002,931 18,167 111,746 - 1,801,980
Disposals HE - - (28,327) (176,628) - (345,210) - (650,165)
At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017 R-Z—-RE+-A=1+—-8

/-E—+E-F-H - 162,225 5,998,032 13,564,501 614,350 1,754,383 — 22,083,491
Charge for the year FRHE - 8,303 587,263 1,248,478 18,144 151,003 - 2,013,191
Disposals e - - - (631,289) - (11,643 - (642,931)
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+F+-A=F-H - 160,528 6,085,295 14,181,691 632,494 1,893,743 — 23,453,751
Carrying amounts REE
At 1 January 2016 WZE-xE-F—-H 2,597,046 271,248 13,270,401 8,030,905 81,537 458,999 16,700 24,726,836
At 31 December 2016/1 January 2017 R -F—AE+-A=+-0/

“F—+%-A-H 397,046 262,945 13,007,658 7,348,358 63,370 451,714 135,837 21,666,828
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+F+-A=F-H 3,797,046 254,642 12,493,395 7,447,831 45,226 390,969 317,424 24,746,533
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 1% - BMERRE@®
(Continued)
(a) Security (a) I m
As of the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of R EER RAEEERDIR
assets pledged to licensed banks for banking facilities granted TR E (R W 3E20) i # 1#H T #5 b2
to the Group (see Note 20) are as follows: WITWEERMENT :
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RM RM

BREZSE SARAZLH
——

Leasehold land HE 254,642 262,945

Freehold land KA 97,046 97,046

Factory buildings and other buildings IRmEFTREMET 11,344,831 11,791,483

11,696,519 12,151,474

(b) Assets held under finance leases b) BERMEHRATENEE

As of the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of RBEBHR RERERNFTSE
assets held under finance leases are as follows: MEERBEBEET

2017 2016

—E-tF  —TAF

RM RM

BREZSE SAAZLH
———

Plant and machinery R 55 B % 25 - 78,942
e——
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(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Assets leased out under operating leases

The total future minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating lease are as follows:

13. ¥ BERRE=m

) RELEHENEHNEE

R B] RS AR S TH A R R
KEEBEENRERNOT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

RM RM

BRAZESE SRERSH

I —————————————

Within 1 year 1F R 204,000 204,000
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FEHBERN 170,000 374,000
374,000 578,000

The Group leases out a portion of a property under an operating
lease. The lease typically runs for a period of three years, with
an option to renew the lease. Lease payments are agreed at a
fixed monthly amount. The lease does not include any
contingent rentals.

The analysis of carrying amounts of
properties is as follows:

L

AEBERE -MHEEHEOHELE
DYE - ZHEH—RA/BM=5F 7
ZEEH -HecWBERETA
ERE ZEHL T BR/EEMK

d MEBREEHZHAOT

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
RM RM
BRARSE HRALZSE
EEee———
In Malaysia NRERAL:
— freehold — KA ERE 10,431,711 7,253,368
— medium-term leases — R HIFE 4 6,113,372 6,414,181
16,545,083 13,667,549
Representing: K&k :
Factory buildings and other buildings IRmEFTREMET 12,493,395 13,007,558
Interest in leasehold land with unexpired lease 7| 4 78 Ef 4B 161 50 F &9
period of more than 50 years FHE Ry S 254,642 262,945
Interest in freehold land KAZEREL R 3,797,046 397,046
16,545,083 13,667,549

L
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

14. RB R RIHNKRE

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Name of entity

Place and
date of incorporation/
establishment

Issued and fully
paid share capital

R-_E—+ttF+_A=+—HHWES

AIEFFIRIT

Proportion of
ownership interest

n

Principal activities

ETREHR

HmRL
EREB Bt B B ERTRBERE FrA RELL B
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
I
Directly held
BEERH
SP Coco Limited* The British Virgin Islands United States Dollar 100% 100%
11 November 2016 (“USD") 1
SP Coco Limited* RBERES 1%L
—E-RE+—-A+—H () 100% 100%
Indirectly held
BEREE
S&P (Hong Kong) Holding Limited* Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%
25 November 2016
S&P (Hong Kong) Holding Limited* 2 &
—Z-RE+-AZ+HhH 18T 100% 100%
Edaran Bermutu Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 100% 100%
(“Edaran”) 29 November 2001
Edaran Bermutu Sdn. Bhd. BARAEE 100
([Edaran]) ZET-F+—A=+NA SREALSHE 100% 100%
Radiant Span Sdn. Bhd. (“Radiant”) Malaysia RM100 100% 100%
11 July 1998
Radiant Span Sdn. Bhd. BRAE 100
([ Radiant]) —hWANELA+—H BRETTHE 100% 100%
Indirectly held
BEREE
S & P Industries Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM5,000,000 100% 100%
20 December 2004
S &P Industries Sdn. Bhd. BRA D 5,000,000
—EENE+-A=+H BRAEDRLHE 100% 100%

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REZK

Manufacturing and trading of
coconut cream powder,
low fat desiccated
coconut and related
products

BLERERMEY
15 i 46 25 % 4 L 2
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place and
date of incorporation/
establishment

14. R B 2 AR E @)

Issued and fully
paid share capital

Proportion of

Name of entity ownership interest Principal activities

EmAL
EREB Rt 2R B H ERTRBERE FrE RELL Bl TEER
2017 2016
“E—tF ZZT—KRF
I
Rasa Mulia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM50,000 100% 100% Trading of coconut cream
(“Rasa Mulia”) 20 October 1999 powder, low fat
desiccated coconut,
ketupat, kerisik and
related products
Rasa Mulia Sdn. Bhd. BRAD 50,000 100% 100% B ZHEH  EAEBE -
([RasaMulial) —ANhFE+RA=Z+H SRELSE ketupat * kerisik & 18 B &
o
Shifu Ingredients Sdn. Bhd. (“Shifu”) Malaysia RM100,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of ketupat and
4 July 1996 kerisik
Shifu Ingredients Sdn. Bhd. R 100,000 100% 100% #isketupatKkerisik
([Shiful) —ANARELAMA BRALSH
Stancodex Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM2,400,004 100% 100% Trading of coconut cream
4 March 1998 powder, low fat
desiccated coconut and
related products
Stancodex Sdn. Bhd. BRAE 2,400,004 100% 100% EEMHFY - EAHA KA
—ANN\E=AMA BRAZRRE BEm
Meridian Ace Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100,000 100% 100% Inactive
13 November 1996
Meridian Ace Sdn. Bhd. BRAE 100,000 100% 100% EMmER
—hANAARF+—A+=H SRARLE
Stancodex Pte. Ltd.” Singapore Singapore Dollars 100% 100% Inactive
16 November 2015 (“SGD”) 50,000
Stancodex Pte. Ltd.* N 50,000¥ N4 7T 100% 100% EEEL
—Z-RFET—A+RH ( [Frmsocl )

S&P Industries (Shenzhen) Ltd.
BERDRINVERRF"

The People’s Republic of China

9 February 2015

- 100% Inactive

WERRCRINBRRRA FEARLE - - 100% EEER
“Z-RF¥-ANR

. Companies not audited by KPMG. REKPMGEZH) 2 & ©

# The English translation of the company name is for reference only. The official REABNRELERSE LA RBOE

name of the entity is in Chinese. The entity was disposed of to Mr. Tang on 23
March 2017 for a cash consideration of RMB10,000 (approximately RM6,445).

NEBAPX REER-_T—tF=A=
+=ZBHE FTange 4  BEREAEARK
10,0007 (496,445 5 R FAE S ) ©
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

In 2016, the Group had an investment in an associate, M.Ace (Thailand)
Co. Ltd., which was an inactive company with paid-up capital of Thai
Baht (“THB”) 2,000,000 (approximate to RM40,206). On 21
December 2016, the associate was disposed of to Mr. Tang with
cash consideration of RM40,206, resulting a gain on disposal of
RM40,206.

15. R E DA ER

RZZE—REF AEERERBELRS
M.Ace (Thailand) Co. Ltd. * H /& — K & &
% %N A B2 KA %R2,000,000 % &
(IR 8]) (8940206 F5RKAELEH) - B
—E-RE+ZAZ-+—B - ZBMLELN
Al & FTang st &£ © 31 & X & 540,206

BREESF - #1150 & K=40,206 5%
RALSH -
16. INVENTORIES 16. &
2017 2016
—E—tE —TE—RF
RM RM
BERARSE HFRALESE
S
Packaging and raw materials BERREME 4,423,453 4,788,697
Unpacked finished goods AE B & 24,996,480 13,727,261
Finished goods Ak @ 895,129 1,408,403
30,315,062 19,924,361
The amount of inventories recognised as HABRAYHNEERBI T -
an expense is as follows:
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFTEMNEREE 65,029,580 59,227,157
] o
17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. EZ REMEKRRE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note RM RM
e BRADZSE BFRATSH

I

Trade receivables Z 5 WA 17(a) 14,878,361 17,713,589
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &4 ~ JB 17 218 & E fib fiE

WK IAE 3,410,750 4,526,534

18,289,111 22,240,123

All trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

I

FiBEE S REMERFAEERBER —
FAUWE HERRBFEX
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. H 4tb fE I FIE )
(@ EZFEWRE

(a) Trade receivables

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables based on the invoice date is as follows:

BERSHR ERBEREHH
B 5 R FARER DT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
RM RM

BRAZSE BROEADRSTE

I

Within 1 month 1@ AR 8,756,688 7,759,610
Over 1 month to 2 months 122M@A 3,514,127 5,668,559
Over 2 months to 3 months 2Z2 31 A 1,690,037 3,547,262
Over 3 months 31 A A 917,509 738,158

14,878,361 17,713,589

The following table sets out an ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on due date as at the dates indicated:

L

RARBEH ERIBPENES
FEU R IR R ER D AT AT -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ERF
RM RM

BRAZSE BRADSTE

I

Not past due N 48 %60 Hf 10,913,966 11,630,086
Past due 1 to 30 days AEI1 230K 3,104,572 5,586,854
Past due 31 to 60 days # H131 260K 514,755 478,103
Past due more than 60 days @ HI60 R LA E 345,068 18,546

14,878,361 17,713,589

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, none of the Group’s trade
receivables was individually or collectively considered to be
impaired. Trade receivables are due within 7 to 120 days from
the date of invoice. Further details on the Group’s credit policy
are set out in Note 23(d).

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

L

TE—tEFRZTE-REFE+Z
—+—H XEENEZFEK
TH B B sk HE B9 K R AR
BE-EHERFBBREZHIRT
F120KNEH - BEAASEE A
B i — SR B HA MY 5E23(d) ©

S
A
:E/A-,

R 4 380 B0 7T R OB (B 0 8 M R TR B
MY BIERCTENEZEFE
A -
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. B 5 & & b F& g = 18 (@)

(@) Trade receivables (continued) (a) B 5 EWRKE @

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

B %8 B8 SRR E W MR IE 8 K
SHEASEARFEBLCIEN
BUEF - REBEEGELER BEE
BE BERAXTERAIERE
B ROETERERYTERE
FILEZSERNBERAIBH

recoverable. Y@ o
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. HERBEEEEY
2017 2016
—B—tF ZE-RF
RM RM
EXARESE BXRADSTH
N
Cash on hand FER S 56,443 20,979
Bank balances in licensed banks RIFBETHRITE S 59,368,857 10,094,078

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated RIFETBRRERORE S K&

statement of financial position REEED 59,425,300 10,115,057
Bank overdrafts (see Note 20) RITEX (A KiE20) = (1,999,595)
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated RiFeReREENRE R

statement of cash flows BeEED 59,425,300 8,115,462

L
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19. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 19. RA K #E

() EBEEHBEEH

AEBFNRFREHEBNER
BaEamMBRIAINGEAEDED
Ko ANRABILERIAR A
RIZBREFRNEHFEHT

(@) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the date of incorporation and at the end of the year mr
are set out below:
Share Translation
Share capital premium Other reserves reserve  Accumulated
(Note 19(b))  (Note 19(c)(i)) ~ (Note 19(c)(ii)  (Note 19(c)ii)) losses Total
R RAEE Hit e BERE
(Hsti9p)  (Wi1gen)  (WaE190)i) (B 19e) RitEE EH)
RM RM RM RM RM RM
SRETSE BRARSE SAALST FRELSE SRARSE SXERLTE
At 10 November 2016 R-B-XE
(date of incorporation) +-B+8
(AL BH) = - - - - =
Issuance of shares for share 1B S @ st B 1
swap pursuant to Rk
the Reorganisation —* — 49,144,626 - — 49,144,626
Loss and total comprehensive EiREE 2 E
expense for the period Hx 8% - - - - (1,856,600) (1,856,600)
At 31 December 2016/ RZE-RE
1 January 2017 +=ZA=1+-H
/ZB-tE
-A-H = - 49,144,626 - (1,856,600) 47,288,026
Shares issued under initial B IR AR RENKH
public offering, net of BTG %
shareissuance expenses  {TH ) 1,485,427 63,164,195 - - - 64,649,622
Capitalisation of share BARCRMDEE
premium 4,456,279 (4,456,279) - - - -
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (13,802,048)  (13,802,048)
Other comprehensive FREMEERS
expense for the year - - - (2,746,220) - (2,746,220)
Loss and total comprehensive 4 &5 18 [z
expense for the year PERATEE - - - (2,746,220)  (13,802,048)  (16,548,268)
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+F
+=ZA=+-H 5,941,706 58,707,916 49,144,626 (2,746,220)  (15,658,648) 95,389,380
e Y
* The balances represent amounts less than RM1. HEHIERM1BERAESHENRIA-
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19. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 19. R A K # & @)

(b) A

KRABRZZE—X"F+—A+H
EHREHETMKIAER R
B R AR & FE KA A380,000
7 JT 0 o 438,000,000 % & A% E
BOO1E TR R F —
+tFXNANA ARQAEER
7N 3% Hn %= 50,000,000 7T 0 D A
5,000,000,000 f% & A% @ E0.01/5
TR ERK . ReEMAK B 8
10 L@ IEEE LR BRARE
NERERET  ARAFARE
HEHFBFHINAT

(b) Share capital

The Company was incorporated on 10 November 2016 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
with authorised share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. On 8 June 2017, the
authorised share capital of the Company has increased to
HK$50,000,000, divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each. On the date of incorporation, 10 ordinary shares
were allotted and issued as fully paid at par. Details of the
changes in the Company’s equity for the year are set out below:

2017 2016
—EB-tF S
No. of shares HK$ No. of shares HK$
BB EE BT B 1n 2 B BT
N
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & IR E H0.0178 7T HY
T imaR 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 38,000,000 380,000
I
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
No. of shares RM No. of shares RM
BRADR BRADR
B#% & E °F B8 E F
N
Ordinary shares, issued and ZRR BRTR
fully paid off: Fol G
At 1 January 2017/10 November R T —+ 4
2016 (date of incorporation) —A—RB/
—E-RF
+—HA+H
(FEM Az B 8D 60 = 10
Issuance of shares for share swap 1818 & 4 5t ix 1) & #
pursuant to the Reorganisation BT (M aF(3)
(Note ()) - - 50
Capitalisation of share premium BRI HDRE
(Note (i) (Bt & (i) 809,999,940 4,456,279 —
Shares issued under initial public & /X A B 2 & B A%
offering (Note (ii)) 19 817 (M &1 (i) 270,000,000 1,485,427 -
At 31 December R+=ZB=+—-H 1,080,000,000 5,941,706 60

*

The balances represent amounts less than RM1.

*

EHIEERMBERARSE

IR ©
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19. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) Share capital (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, S&P (Hong Kong) Holding Limited
acquired the entire equity interests in Edaran, Radiant, Rasa Mulia and
Shifu from the Controlling Shareholders on 29 December 2016. On the
same date, the Company issued and allotted 35 shares and 15 shares to
TYJ Holding Limited and Trinity Holding Limited respectively to satisfy the
purchase considerations (the “share swap”).

The issued share capital in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016 represented the Company’s issued share capital
as if the share swap had occurred at the beginning of the financial year.

Pursuant to written resolutions of the Company’s shareholders passed on
8 June 2017 and 23 June 2017, conditional upon the crediting of the
share premium account of the Company as a result of the issue of ordinary
shares pursuant to the initial public offering, the Directors were authorised
to allot and issue a total of 809,999,940 shares, by way of capitalisation of
the sum of HK$8,099,999 (approximate to RM4,456,279) standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company, credited as fully
paid at par to the Controlling Shareholders.

On 11 July 2017, the Company issued 270,000,000 shares with a par
value of HK$0.01, at a price of HK$0.48 per share by way of a global initial
public offering to Hong Kong and International Investors. Net proceeds
from such issue amounted to HK$117,511,009 (approximate to
RM64,649,622) (after offsetting share issuance expenses of
HK$12,088,991 (approximate to RM6,650,855)), of which RM1,485,427
and RM63,164,195 were recorded in share capital and share premium,
respectively.

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves

0]

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of shares of the
Company. Under the Cayman Companies Law, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company would be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of the
business.

19. R A K f# & @)
(b) B% 7 (@)

Wik

(i

(i)

1R #& & 48 - S&P (Hong Kong) Holding
Limted® —ZF—"F+ A=+
F 17 4% % % 5 4 B Edlaran  Radiant
Rasa Mulia 2 Shifuf) & 3B ik # - R B

& A 7 5 Bl [ TYJ Holding Limited &
Trinity HoIdmg Limited 25 17 % Fic 8 35 1%
A& D 1R D - LAEMNBERE
(TRRBHE#R] -

HERBRARPIR_FT-REF+
—RAR=+—8H E’]E?éﬁﬂﬁzﬁa$’&
BB BTN MR T BN %
MRFERRBEEFE-

BEARBDRER = +F X
NEEZF— ti/\ﬂ +=8
BHNEBRZR FARRARKRGE
Eﬁﬁmﬁﬁé/kﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%@
BmERSERE EFEREHAN
A a8 & 1 i B Bk 8,099,999/ T
(4ﬁ4456279%5¥5ﬁ§§“i)ﬁ']i§

HEBRRER RBERETEHE
809,999,940H§H§1ﬁ REEARE
2R AR R R AR K -

3 Fﬁd

RZE—+tF+tA+—HB  AAQF
UNE2HERARBEENHIXNAES
K Bl BR 4% & 4 ¢ 47 270,000,000 A%
A& EE A0.01 8 TR - FARRES
BOABHE T - FAREMBRAIBFE
£117,511,0097% 7T ( 464,649,622 5
RADSE)(CEBEBRHBETHAX
12,088,991 7% 7T ( #96,650,855 5 K 7

SHE)) HR1,485427 5K A G4
H K&63,164,195F R AT L& 9 AIA
B AR AR R B 19 5 (B

c) BEMHERAR

(i)

Hﬁﬁ“lﬁ
B EHRAR ARG RE
18 BZR R R) 3 17 IR £ WER PR
STREZENEZR - RER
[=/NEI D ZIK A j% 9 4 B
BRAH AR TFARAIRR
HEEESESRKE ZH
& ARABERRENZINER

HEXRGEREP BN 2
IR
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19. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves (Continued)

(d)

(i)

(i)

Other reserve

Other reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the par value of the Company’s shares issued
and the aggregate amount of paid-up capital of Edaran,
Radiant, Rasa Mulia and Shifu pursuant to the share swap
as disclosed in Note 19(b), as if the current group
structure and share swap had been occurred on 1
January 2016.

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the par value of the Company’s shares issued
and the equity in Edaran, Radiant, Rasa Mulia and Shifu
acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation as disclosed in
Note 2.

Translation reserve

The reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Note 3(c).

Dividend

In 2016, dividend paid represented an interim dividend declared
by the Company’s subsidiary, Edaran in respect of the financial
year ended 31 December 2016. The rate of dividend and the
number of shares ranking for dividend are not presented as
such information is not meaningful having regard to the
Reorganisation as disclosed in Note 2(a).

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the financial year.

19. R A K f# & @

(c)

(d)

REEERAZE@®

(i) Htt#E

N & B H Mt R B W
F19(b)PT H# FE B Bk ) B
BTHARARG @EESR
Edaran + Radiant » Rasa Mulia
K Shifu i B % 78 48 58 2 [ /Y
ZHE O OMORITEEERK
BHEBRER T —RNF—
H—HB%AE-

N R A E AR R
HoMBEEMEABITHAR
N AR D E E AT U RS 8
Edaran * Radiant * Rasa Mulia

X Shifu % # 2 ff &) Z= 58 o

mERE

ZiEEERRE SN EB Y
BHRREEANEZERLE
BR o ik fif 1 1R R Y = 3(c) AT &K

(iii)

VR E R -
i’ E
RoT—XE BHBBEAL

M B A FEdarangh B & — T —
NE+ A=+ HLEYBEE
TR AFAERE - AREE B
TR EMNERE  REEXER
AERBEENKROBENERE
EMK RUTEZ2HNEBEER-

EZgCRETEF RN AN K
FENERREEKE -
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20. LOANS AND BORROWINGS 20. ERRBR
2017 2016
—E—+ & —E—REF
Note RM RM

e BRADSE BRAZSTE

I

Non-current 3E BD A

Bank loans — secured RITER — BEM 20(a) 3,404,583 3,798,876

Current BN HA

Bank overdrafts — secured RITER — HEAF 20(a) - 1,999,695

Finance lease liabilites — secured MmEREAE - FHEF 20(b) - 25,083

Bank loans — secured RITER — BEA 20(a) 1,396,096 1,235,155
1,396,096 3,259,833
4,800,679 7,058,709

(a) Bank loans and bank overdrafts

As of the end of the reporting period, the bank loans and
overdrafts were repayable as follows:

@ MITERRBITERX

RBERR BEERTERK
BT

2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RF
RM RM

BREDSE FARAZLTH

I

Within one year —F R 1,396,096 3,234,750
After one year but within two years —FEMTNA 387,097 387,097
After two years but within five years MFEBRAFN 1,161,291 1,430,936
After five years HF1% 1,856,195 1,980,843
3,404,583 3,798,876
4,800,679 7,033,626
e
. =
Security B m

The bank loans and bank overdrafts are secured over the
leasehold land, freehold land and factory buildings and other
buildings (see Note 13(a)) and the corporate guarantees given
by the Company (see Note 26(d)).

ZERTERRBITEZTIAME
Exi  KAXELMURTRE
BFRHEMEF (R K E130) A
RARDBREOHEREREHE
26(d)) YEHEHH
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20. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

(b) Finance lease liabilities (b)

Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:

20. ERRER@®m
MmEHEa®
ENREREAENT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF

Present Present
value of Future value of Future
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments Interest payments payments Interest  payments
REHEE RREE HKEHE KRR AR
NHREE FE HESR NHRE FE MHENK
RM RM RM RM RM RM
BERAZ BEXRAZ BRAZE SHRALE SXRALRE FERALR
<LHE °F <HE Ea- Ea- FH

1 S

—F A - - - 25,083 484 25,567

Within one year

(c)

(c) Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to
cash flows arising from financing activities

SESHEMEETHFE

REREYER

Net changes

from

At 1 January financing At 31 December

2017 cash flows 2017

R=-Z—t ®BERSR RZB—+tHF

F—H—8 EREHFE +-H=+-—H

RM RM RM

Bk D B2k B BARE D

*HE *HE *HE

I

Bank loans IRITE K 5,034,031 (233,352) 4,800,679
Finance lease liabilities MEHEGE 25,083 (25,083) -
Total liabilities from financing activites gL & EE & E 4458 5,059,114 (258,435) 4,800,679
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 1. EEXEBBEEE (AR
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are attributable to the following: BERMEBEBEE/(BE)EBRIUTH
E :
2017 2016
—E—tF  ZBXF
RM RM

BRAZSE BRALSTE

I

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MEKRE (1,799,069) (2,010,922)
Unrealised foreign exchange differences AEIRINEZEEE (524,740) (777,218)
Tax loss carry-forwards MIEEEEE 40,674 49,464
Provisions ] - 138,240

(2,283,135) (2,600,436)

Representing: AT e
— Deferred tax assets —RERIBEEE 36,304 49,464
— Deferred tax liabilities —REEBIEAE (2,319,439) (2,649,900)
(2,283,135) (2,600,436)
I
Movements in temporary differences during the year: FANEREREF:
Unrealised
Property, foreign Tax loss
plant and exchange carry-
equipment differences forwards  Provisions Total
M- BE REH HEEE
&3] SNEZHE Fef Bi%E st
RM RM RM RM RM
BRAE R R SR Nk 2R B2RA TR
S S S S S
At 1 January 2016 R-T—XRE
—H—H (1,954,809) (870,335) 122,329 172,800 (2,030,015)
Charged to profit or loss Mk=EEx
(see Note 8) (2 H17E8) (56,113) (406,883) (72,865) (34,560) (570,421)
At 31 December 2016/ RZTE—RF
1 January 2017 +=-—A=+—
B/ —ZT—+fF
—H—H (2,010,922) (777,218) 49,464 138,240 (2,600,436)
Credited/(Charged) to A B E)
profit or loss (see Note 8) 1828
(R Mta8) 211,853 252,478 (8,790) (138,240) 317,301
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-—A=+—H (1,799,069) (524,740) 40,674 — (2,283,135)
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2. E5REMEMNKIE

2017 2016

—E—+tF —EF—RF

Note RM RM

Mg BRAZSE BRARSH

EEEe——

Trade payables 2 5 e RIB 22(a) 4,459,014 4,162,458
Advances from customers BEBR 470,734 437,094
Other payables and accruals HiENRIEBERETER 4,001,423 4,474,259
8,931,171 9,073,811

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within

one year or are repayable on demand.

(@)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade payables based on the invoice date is as follows:

I

MBEESNEMENRBERAR —F
NEBRNBREEER -

@ BEREHR ERBEREHH
B RMNFERROTMT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

RM RM

BRATESE HRALRSH

e .

Within 1 month 1EAR 3,454,925 2,994,841
Over 1 month to 3 months 1£3@A 1,001,723 1,060,168
Over 3 months to 6 months 3Z=61E A - 7,508
Over 6 months 61E A A+ 2,366 99,941
4,459,014 4,162,458

I
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

23. @I A

(a) Categories of financial instruments

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments
categorised as follows:

(@ EMIAEER

TEREHRELATIENEMTA
DT

2017 2016

—E—tF —ERF

Note RM RM
Mt BRAZTSE BRATSH

Financial assets — loans and

THMEE-EXR

L

receivables FE W SR 18
Trade and other receivables* B 5 Rk E b sRIE 15,382,024 19,703,305
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBESEEY 18 59,425,300 10,115,057
74,807,324 29,818,362
I
excluding prepayments and goods and services tax receivable B HETE N FRIE K E AR RE
Fi1g
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note RM RM
e BRADRSE BFRALZSEH
I
Financial liabilities measured at RBERRTENSR
amortised costs =R
Loans and borrowings B AER 20 (4,800,679) (7,058,709)
Trade and other payables** 5 N H M pE A e (8,714,562) (8,865,833)
(13,515,241) (15,924,542)

wok

excluding goods and services tax payables

L

* TBIEE & R 75 R B R
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Net gains and losses arising from financial

23. @I AEuwm
b) ERMIEEENKRBERE

instruments BERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
RM RM
EXRAESE SRADSTH
Net (losses)/gains on: LT&EN(ER),
W R R
Loans and receivables ERREWRE
— Foreign exchange differences — HNE ZFE (1,446,924) 1,249,879
— Finance income — g A 189,953 10,700
(1,256,971) 1,260,579
Financial liabilities measured at amortised ZE#RAHENSRE RS
cost
— Foreign exchange differences — SN E FE 20,105 (85,480)
— Finance costs — B A (376,973) (336,475)
(356,868) (421,955)
(1,613,839) 838,624

Financial risk management

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of
financial instruments:

° Credit risk
° Liquidity risk
° Market risk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arises principally from its receivables from customers.

c) e EKER
AEERFEASHTEMmELY N
TR R
o EERR
o MENE S R

. ™ 15 [ &

EERRE

FERBREEFPXEMTAHTF
TAREBTHEHANEHEHAE
MEXMBBELRNER NEH
MEEERBREZRABKEFK
F o

(d)
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

23. @I @)

(d)

Receivables

Risk management objectives, policies and processes for
managing the risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit facilities.

Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are stated at
their realisable values. A significant portion of these receivables
are regular customers that have been transacting with the
Group. Trade receivables are due within 7 to 120 days from the
date of invoice. The Group uses ageing analysis to monitor the
credit quality of the receivables. Any receivables having
significant balances past due more than 90 days, which are
deemed to have higher credit risk, are monitored individually.
The Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral

As at the end of each reporting period, the maximum exposure
to credit risk arising from receivables is represented by the
respective carrying amounts in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, 52% and 56%
of the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and 65% and 63% of the total trade receivables was
due from the five largest customers of the Group respectively.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in Note 17.

FEERRE @

F& W R TE
BEREERIZE HRLKEER
2 B 12 7
EEFE&MZT& I #5 48 B
REERR -FEFGERAAR

ﬁxIﬁEﬂé% HEIT e

EREECERDAESEBEER
TE%Tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁH&ﬁT
SIREEIE ZERBRED
ERTFDAEAEERBERTHH
THEFP - BHBKARERAH
EHHEF7TEI208 A EH - K
SEFERAER D MEEERZKE
WEEBHZ - HAE®H0A N L
B EE K 45 88 B (T o] JE U SR IB AR
ABHEERSEERE  WHEITHE
%%%o$%@1ﬁﬁ¥ﬁm%
AR

EERRE FEEXZREHRY
RERESHR KEEKKED
KAGEERBIESA MBI K
W%%Eﬁo

AEEBHNEERBRIERSE
%%ﬁmﬂ%%@ﬁ#%ﬁw“
FIBITX3BRNEE AE
AEESTRRBEIZEHRAEEH
HERRE A REAEATEKNE
S - N _E—+ER-F
NE+-_B=+—H EH5ENK
XA 48 B H52% K 56% A T U K
EERARFRE MEHEK
TR TH 48 KA H)65% N 63% & JE I K
EERARPHRA-

AEBYTERHEELRYEEE
2 B2 ) (E AT AR o

EEAEEXRBE S RNEMERK
RIENEERRNE—FSELH
B EE17 -
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 23. €@ T B
(e) Liquidity risk (e) "BELEK
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet nBETRRERNSBE REERERE
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s exposure I emeENRR - NREEE
to liquidity risk arises principally from its trade and other Eall=y ,,.Ejj,éf%ﬁﬂli TEHREEZS
payables and loans and borrowings. ME M ENRIE B EEKS
4B o
The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and REBREFSNWIR S LLEESEE
adequate banking facilities by the management to ensure, as MERHIBETRE BHEEE
far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its BERURIEERESEAE B
liabilities as and when they fall due. WHRBECUEEEINHEE-
It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity EHIEHASTPRONRESEET
analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly eRBRETITSEREATRDN

different amounts.

Maturity analysis

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period based on

TREELE-

YA D
TERBERBRERRAEE SR
BENIHABER(ERNRUERE

undiscounted contractual payments: B EO -
Contractual
interest
Carrying rate per Contractual Under More than
amount annum  cash flows 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5years
A A
=0 =R
REE FHE  ReRE 1EUR 1528 2Z5% 585 L
RM % RM RM RM RM RM
BRES BREE BRER BRES BRES %Xﬁﬁﬁ
A % AN AN A A 7 El
(! /! /' !/ '/ /[ ||
2017 —E-tF
Loans and borrowings BEHIREH
— Bank loans —BITER 4,800,679 4.02%-4.65% 6,056,105 1,741,089 691,528 2,074,583 1,548,905
Trade and other payables 2 5 & £ f &
HIE 8,931,171 - 8,931,171 8,931,171 - - -
13,731,850 14,987,276 10,672,260 691,528 2,074,583 1,548,905

2016 —E-RxE
Loans and borrowings BERRMER
— Bank overdrafts —RITEX 1,999,595 7.81% 1,999,595 1,999,595 - - -
— Bank loans —BITEX 5,034,031 4.02%-4.65% 6,591,072 1,584,528 691,528 2,074,583 2,240,433
— Finance lease liabiites ~ — B&AFE
B 25,083 3.45% 25,567 25,567 - - -
Trade and other payables 2 5 [ H i fE
HE 9,073,811 — 9,073,811 9,073,811 — — —
16,132,520 17,690,045 12,683,501 691,528 2,074,583 2,240,433
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(f)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices
that will affect the Group’s financial position or cash flows.

0]

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk
of change in fair value due to changes in interest rates.
The Group’s floating rate borrowings are exposed to a
risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest
rates. Short term receivables and payables are not
significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

Risk management objectives, policies and
processes for managing the risk

The Group utilises long and short term borrowings for
working capital purposes. The Group manages its interest

rate exposure by maintaining a mix of fixed and floating
rates borrowings.

23. @I @)

(f)

™ 5 Bk
TISARIETISEELREH W
Bl THEERREEEYEL
SEMBRRXASEENR
o GhEETE K K 7 G -

() AEEE

AN E B A E E R X REE
A EEHBEH AR BEEHE
@JE’]J—WM K& E W B F
KGR EE AT RS EBE
ReReESsMER - 25
e Uk R OB K e A BB Y &
HEARFERE -
EEEEHE KRR
B 7 fez 57/&/_‘_
rEBEpGEEESHEDA
FHMEHER - AEER
@RS B E R R ROF g F X
A EEHEM KRR -

H *h
8 A

Exposure to interest rate risk [E] 51 ) 3 J& fe
The interest rate profile of the Group’s significant interest- RBEHREEBEZENE
bearing financial instruments, based on carrying amounts SRTENMIRESR(ER
as at the end of the reporting period was: BREE) & -
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—RF
RM RM
BRAZESE SRERSH
Eeee——
Fixed rate instruments BEMEITA
Finance lease liabilities BEHEARE - 25,083
Bank loans RITE X 1,009,000 893,000
1,009,000 918,083
Floating rate instruments EEHANEIA
Bank loans RITER 3,791,679 4,141,031
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 1,999,595
3,791,679 6,140,626

L
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Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account its fixed rate financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the respective reporting dates

would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for floating rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points (“bp”) in interest rates at the
end of the reporting period would have increased/
(decreased) post-tax profit by the amounts shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables remain

(f)

23. @I B

™™ 5 & B ()
(i) F =R

T 3 J2 iz 850 B8R 70
BIE M E T AR 7 EEH
R DT
AEBYEARRAREE
FABREMEENXERA
B Bt BHE B HOF

=T DES S TSR

FEFETAMBE T REH
BT

REEHR - MEEFH100(E
EETEHRD  BRHRREER
1 LA T BT R 2 %R 3 00 OR
D)o DI RE A B M E

constant. SEREBETE o
Increased/(decreased)
post-tax profit
g CRD) BB & %R
100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease
12 fn A
10018 & & 100 1 £ B4
RM RM
BERAEEZSE BRAELE
e
2017 —E—tF
Floating rate instruments FEANEIA
Financial liabilities TRBE (28,817) 28,817
2016 —E—XE
Floating rate instruments SZEANMEITA
Financial liabilities cRBE (46,669) 46,669

I
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 23. €@/t T A @)
() Market risk (continued) () ™% & ks s
(i) Currency risk (i) E¥E K

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales REERANAEETEEY
and purchases that are denominated in a currency other e EE NI E B ED
than the respective functional currencies of Group entities. EEmEINERR - 3| Bt
The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily USD. RO EBEERET
Exposure to currency risk [H ¥ 5 ¥ 7 bz
The Group’s exposure to currency (a currency which is REBMERATRE AR
other than the functional currency of the Group entities) FHEEYHEEB(ARERE
risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the BeEEB NI EE) R
reporting period is as follows. For presentation purpose, o MEHRBENMS > AR
the amounts of the exposure are expressed in RM, SRR E AR ENHIE
translating using the spot rate at end of the reporting XEHmABERESESHY
period. N e

Denominated in USD

B T AHE

2017 2016
—g-t® —F-A

RM RM

BRAEZSE KBERAFELTH
——

Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b e U SR IE 11,349,669 14,376,254
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEED 2,542,152 1,172,795
Trade and other payables B 5 K H M FE5RIA (378,904) (373,599)

13,512,917 15,175,450

L
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 23. €@ T A @)
() Market risk (continued) ) ™% & ks )
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) E%¥ER@

Currency risk sensitivity analysis B E B R AT

A 10% strengthening of RM against USD at the end of REREHRSKATSE
each reporting period would have increased/(decreased) HETLEA10% B E R
post-tax profit by the amounts shown below. This analysis MR A TR & 5818,
is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that CORD) e M IDERAKRE
the Group considered to be reasonably possible at the RAERNEREHRBEESE
end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes that A] BE By AN EEE R & ) M {E
all other variables, in particular interest rates, remained Helt D MBEFMA & M &
constant. B(LEENR)RBETE -

Increased/(decreased)
post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December
'/ (RP)EE+=A
Et+-—HLFENKRBERZF

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RM RM

BRADZSE BFRAETH
e

uUsb ETT (1,026,982) (1,153,334)

e —
A 10% weakening of RM against USD at the end of each EMEEMEERFTTIEN
reporting period would have had equal but opposite effect BAT RERESHPREK
on USD to the amounts shown above, on the basis that AESEHETIERI0%E
all other variables remained constant. HETEAHEEERATSE

HEEREZERNZE -

(il Commodity price risk (i) BRELRR
Raw materials such as coconuts are major components MFERMETIFEKAH
of cost of inventories. Exposure to fluctuations in the FEZHEKE D o BERME
commodity prices of such raw materials is closely P ERRE R AT
monitored by management and managed through BUEE WHERHERE

adjusting the selling prices. BER-
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(9) Fair value information

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term
receivables and payables and short term borrowings reasonably
approximate their fair values due to the relatively short term
nature of these financial instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments not carried at fair
value for which fair value is disclosed, together with their
carrying amounts shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position. None of the financial instruments are carried
at fair value during the reporting period.

23. @I @)

(9)

AREEESR

RekReFEY - BHREEK
TH N FE AN RIE DA &R S R BR
HEZEAAEEGEMRE R
ArZzEemIALBHREYEY
e -

TERAOMAABEECREEBLE
BRnBEIENERTAER
RAMBRARAREERE ®
BEHE - MESRIARAR
EBEIK-

Fair value of financial instruments
not carried at fair value
WEEZAAEBBIIENESMITA

AREHE
Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total amount
F-—EBHR F-EBEHR F=ZER et BREE
RM RM RM RM RM
Bkvioy Hkho HRon BRATD FRASD
AN = AN = AN == A== AN ==
~< = < = < = < B9 < =
2017 —E—tHF
Financial liabilities ctRWmad
Bank loans RITER - — 4,354,561 4,354,561 4,800,679
2016 —E—-RE
Financial liabilities tRERE
Finance lease liabilities BmEHRERE — — 27,404 27,404 25,083
Bank loans RITER — — 5,037,304 5,037,304 5,034,031
— — 5,064,708 5,064,708 5,059,114




165

MEEEERAR

T LEFR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continueq)

B 7% 3R 3= Y 5 o

24. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 24.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong
capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so as to maintain investors, creditors and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the financial year.

EXREHE

AEEREREARBHNR R EHFE
ENEAEREREAEEFBELE

EBHeh NEBKREE BEAR
MIHEDL U RRFEEBHORRIFEE
B’ o

WU BEER - AR B E ATk
A w R -

25. COMMITMENTS 25. i
(@) Capital commitments (@) BEAREIE
Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting RIERHARNEETBHRER SR
period not provided for in the consolidated financial statements STIRBEAREREAREENT :
are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
RM RM
BRAZSE BRARSH
e

Property, plant and equipment ME BERRE
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRRITLH 51,500,000 -
Contracted but not provided for BRI AERFHIREG 1,073,090 932,951

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) R&EHERIE

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows: JERNPAHEEEEEERSNA T
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—XRF
RM RM
BRARSE BRAESH
e
Within one year —F R 78,480 86,400
After one year but within five years —FUEERAEFA 70,220 127,400
148,700 213,800

I

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to three years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

$%@72%7fﬁdﬁi‘“%fﬂﬂjhﬁylﬁ
MENABA - BO-—RDTR
H—ZEZ=% ENEAMBKRR
rAREEEEAN - MERANE
BRAES -
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26. A AR B

Identity of related parties

For the purposes of the financial statements, parties are considered
to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions,
or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to
common control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as
those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or
indirectly. The key management personnel include all the Directors of
the Group, and certain members of senior management of the Group.

(a) Significant related party transactions
The terms and conditions of the related party transactions are
based on negotiated terms. The significant related party
transactions of the Group are shown below.

B Bt 5 B & 2

R HREAMS  WAKEAEEER
FEEEG AR ERZTLEZT
MM REERRBEEBEERTEN(R
ZINR) A RE R Z T X LR
E AR RERASENBE T -
BT REAREMER -

MBI TEBREEEEAE  T2EHE
ABEREREEXMEHAEERD
MRS ERREFERREIRELEN
AL - TEERABBEAKEMEE
EURAREEETSREEEXE -

@ EXBEBIXS
BT RXZNGERREFERE
BEEGERA L  AEBENEKREH
BITRZZHRIMAT o

2017 2016
—E—tF  ZFAF
RM RM

BRAEADSTE SFSRAZSTH
——

Related parties s

Operating lease charge paid EfKEEHEER = 12,000
Purchase of a freehold land W BE Sk A FEHE T3 = 300,000
Disposal of a freehold land HEKAERE LM - (2,500,000)
Director -}

& — Mg QA - (40,206)
HE—FRHEAQR (6,445) —
.

Disposal of an associate
Disposal of a subsidiary
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

26. BB RZ @)

Key management personnel remuneration (b) TEEE ABEFHH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AREBFEEBEAETM(BEY
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as MFARRAAEE(RMF10EE)
disclosed in Note 10 and certain of the highest paid employees ETESHFMNES (R T113
as disclosed in Note 11, is as follows: B RE)MT
2017 2016
—E—tF SN
RM RM
BRADZSE BERARSH
e
Salaries and other benefits HFoLEME 2,094,370 1,892,045
Discretionary bonuses BIE FEAT 19,816 358,512
Contributions to Employees’ Provident Fund BEATESHR 221,627 263,153
2,335,813 2,513,710
The above remuneration for key management personnel is T EZEETEBEABSHMENMFEO
included in personnel expenses as disclosed in Note 9. Fr#t Em B AR -
Personal guarantees by Directors c) ESMEALER
At 31 December 2016, Mr. Tang and Mr. Lee have given WZE-—RFE+A=+—8"
personal guarantees totaling RM36,168,428 to certain licensed Tang 5t A& K Lee %t A Bt S&P Industries
banks and a financial institution in respect of banking facilities X Stancodex & % #) SR 17 B & (A &
granted to S&P Industries and Stancodex. These personal FTHREBETE XM EBERD
guarantees have been discharged during the financial year. 18 A P& R #4851 36,168,428 5 K 74 38
LE - ZFEAERER AT K
FEBK -
Corporate guarantees by the Company (d XATHEEER
During the financial year, the Company entered into corporate RAGHREE XD 5K
guarantees in favour of the banks, in respect of the banking £ 20(@) FT # & S&P Industries
facilities of RM11,235,000 granted to S&P Industries and K Stancodex & # #) iR 17 @&t &
Stancodex as disclosed in Note 20(a). 11,235,000 F5 KA S FIART A
Zam AGI M EER -
Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to () HEAEXZMHEEN LMK
connected transactions BIHyiE A

Subsequent to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of Stock Exchange on 11 July 2017, the Group did not
enter into any related party transaction that falls under the
definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RRBBROR_-_FT—tFLAT+
—BEBXAEIRLHR A&
B TS E AR BB 14AB T E
ENHERXFIAFEREIHN
EAEB RS -
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COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 27. A 7] B H B & AR R &
FINANCIAL POSITION
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E—RF
Note RM RM

ez BRADSE BRAZSTH
———

Assets BE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NCINEMNGIEOE 49,144,630 49,144,630
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables Hi gl zma 746,708 1,069,429
Cash and bank balances B & MIR1T 4 47,443,308 —
48,190,016 1,069,429
Total assets EEHE 97,334,646 50,214,059
Equity and liability EERkEE
Equity R
Share capital A% ZX 19 5,941,706 —*
Share premium % 9 & B 58,707,916 -
Reserves e 30,739,758 47,288,026
95,389,380 47,288,026
Current liability REBaE
Other payables H fih B 7R I8 1,945,266 2,926,033
Total equity and liability ERRaEeE 97,334,646 50,214,059
The balance represents an amount less than RM1. * RABERMIBERASRSENRE -
5 =T B 4R
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY AND 2. EEZERAARRAER
ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY bl
The Company is a subsidiary of TYJ Holding Limited, which was RARARRBREXHS M H
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and regarded by the TYJ Holding Limited 2 ff /& 2 =] > 70 78 87
Directors as the Company’s immediate holding company during the BEEREFTAR/RARAMERER
financial year. The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. Tang. DA AERENFEKERT BTang %k
None of these parties produces financial statements available for o ZFEZRTAUEBRUAEIRERN

public use. BITE sk -
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